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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General
Meeting of the shareholders of Continental Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) will be held at Function Room Il & I,
Basement 2, Hotel Miramar, 118-130 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha
Tsui Kowloon, Hong Kong on Wednesday, 12 December,
2007 at 2:00 p.m. for the purpose of transacting the
following business:

As ordinary business:

(1) To receive and consider the audited consolidated
financial statements and the Reports of the Directors
and Auditors of the Group for the year ended 30 June,
2007.

(2) To approve a final dividend for the year ended 30 June,
2007.

(3) To re-elect retiring directors of the Company and to
authorise the board of directors to fix the directors’
remuneration.

(4) To re-appoint auditors of the Company and authorise
the Directors of the Company to fix their remuneration.

And as special business, to consider and, if thought fit, to
pass with or without modification the following resolutions
of which resolutions numbers (5) to (7) will be proposed as
ordinary resolutions:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS
(5) "THAT:

(@) subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by
the Directors of the Company during the Relevant
Period (as defined below) of all the powers of the
Company to purchase shares of the Company
(“Shares"), subject to and in accordance with the
applicable laws, be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved,;



Annual Report 2007 4

Notice of Annual General Meeting m RRBFEAEBEE

(6)

(b)

KIE =3 (a)ER P #E
BECROHEERBENS
BBARN BRI RERB
BEHEEITRARER
B10% * M £ prit 2
HOETMEFE LR - &

MARZRME A
] i HAORE R BB
ZAEETI=FFERE

Sp T

() ARATEERRE
FREHRERE

(i) ARBREL 2
NERRBKRER
BRARE L@BE

R T AR
HEFTZH ¢+ X

(i) AARERMAAIK
E1R 8 A E BT
RARZBRITTE
BRAFKEZH
PR JE B © ]

EEE

(a

X (b)BZ RS
—R BRI HUEAR R R
ExenNBEBEME(ER
BRI RITEARRZ
—UIRENETT  BLE SR
BEZBINR - LHEBRE
HREH SRR ENKA
EFEERRBREZ 2’
BT BEERREEBRN
EREZE  HERAE
1

(b)

the total nominal amount of Shares which
may be purchased pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (a) above shall not exceed 10% of the
total nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company in issue on the date of passing of this
resolution, and the said approval shall be limited
accordingly; and

for the purpose of this resolution, “Relevant
Period” means the period from the passing of this
resolution until whichever is the earlier of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company;

(i)  the revocation or variation of the authority
given under this resolution by ordinary
resolution of the shareholders of the
Company in general meetings; or

(iii) the expiration of the period within which the
next annual general meeting of the Company
is required by the articles of association of the
Company or any applicable laws to be held.”

(6) "THAT:

(a

subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by
the Directors of the Company during the Relevant
Period (as defined below) of all the powers of the
Company to issue, allot and deal with additional
Shares and to make or grant offers, agreements
and options during the Relevant Period which
would or might require Shares to be issued,
allotted or dealt with during or after the end of
the Relevant Period be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved,;
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(b)

the total nominal amount of additional Shares
issued, allotted, dealt with or agreed conditionally
or unconditionally to be issued, allotted or dealt
with, pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a)
above, otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue
(as defined below), or (i) any option scheme or
similar arrangement for the time being adopted
by the Company for the granting or issuance of
Shares or rights to acquire Shares, or (iii) any scrip
dividend scheme or similar arrangement providing
for the allotment of Shares in lieu of the whole
or part of a dividend on Shares of the Company
in accordance with the articles of association
of the Company, shall not exceed 20% of the
total nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company in issue on the date of passing of this
resolution; and

for the purposes of this resolution:

(i)  “Relevant Period” shall have the same
meaning as assigned to it under resolution
number (5) set out in the notice convening
this Meeting;

(i)  "Rights Issue” means an offer of Shares
open for a period fixed by the Directors of
the Company to the holders of Shares on a
fixed record date in proportion to their then
holdings of Shares (subject to such exclusions
or other arrangements as the Directors may
deem necessary or expedient in relation to
fractional entitlements or having regard to
any restrictions or obligations under the laws
of, or the requirements of, any recognised
regulatory body or any stock exchange in any
territory outside Hong Kong).”
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(7)

“THAT subject to the passing of the resolutions
numbers (5) and (6) above, the general mandate
granted to the Directors of the Company to issue,
allot and deal with any additional Shares pursuant to
resolution number (6) above be and is hereby extended
by the addition thereto of the total nominal amount of
Shares which may be purchased by the Company under
the authority granted pursuant to resolution number
(5) above, provided that such amount of Shares so
purchased shall not exceed 10% of the total nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company in issue on
the date of passing this resolution.”

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, to pass
the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

®)

SPECIAL RESOLUTION

“THAT the Articles of Association of the Company be
and are altered in the following manner:

(@) Article 7 be deleted in its entirety and replaced
with the following:

"7 Subject to the provisions of the Ordinance,
the power of the Company to purchase or
otherwise acquire its shares (including its
redeemable shares) and warrants or other
securities for the subscription or purchase of
its own shares (including redeemable shares)
shall be exercisable by the Directors upon
such terms and subject to such conditions as
they think fit provided that, in respect of a
purchase of redeemable shares:

(i) the price per share for purchases
proposed to be made otherwise than
by tender in the manner prescribed
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(b)

(ii)

in (i) below or on or through a stock
exchange on which such shares are
listed with the consent of the Company
shall not exceed one hundred (100)
per cent. of the average closing prices
for dealings in one or more board lots
of such shares on the principal stock
exchange on which the shares are traded for
the five (5) trading days immediately
before the date on which the purchase
is made (whether conditionally or
otherwise); and

where any such purchase is proposed
to be made by tender, tenders shall be
made available to all holders of such
shares on the same terms.”,;

Article 108(l) be amended by deletion of the
words “any company in which the Company has
interest” in sub-paragraph (i) and insertion of the
words “its subsidiaries” in their place; and

Article 111 be amended in the following manner:

(i)

deletion of the following words:

“during the period commencing the day
after despatch of the notice of the meeting
appointed for such election (inclusive of
such day) and ending no later than the day
which is seven days prior to the date of such
meeting (inclusive of such day)”; and
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(i) insertion of the following words in the place
of the words deleted pursuant to paragraph
(o)(i) above:

“at least seven (7) clear days before the date
of the general meeting and the period for
lodgement of such notice shall commence
no earlier than the day immediately after
the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and

"on

shall be at least 7 clear days in length”.

By order of the Board
Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 October, 2007

Registered Office:

Flats M and N, 1st Floor
Kaiser Estate, Phase llI
11 Hok Yuen Street
Hunghom, Kowloon
Hong Kong

Notes:

(a)

Any member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the
Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint another person as
his proxy to attend and vote instead of him. A proxy need not be
a member of the Company.

Where there are joint registered holders of any share of the
Company, any one of such persons may vote at the Annual
General Meeting, either personally or by proxy, in respect of such
share as if he were solely entitled thereto; but if more than one
of such joint holders be present at the Annual General Meeting
personally or by proxy, that one of the said persons so present
whose name stands first on the register of members of the
Company in respect of such share shall alone be entitled to vote
in respect thereof.
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(d)

Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude
a member from attending and voting at the Annual General
Meeting or any adjournment thereof if he so wishes. In that
event, his form of proxy will be deemed to have been revoked.

In order to be valid, the form of proxy duly completed and signed
in accordance with the instructions printed thereon together
with the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which
it is signed or a notarially certified copy thereof must be delivered
to the registered office of the Company at Flats M and N, 1/F,
Kaiser Estate, Phase lll, 11 Hok Yuen Street, Hunghom, Kowloon,
Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time appointed
for holding the Annual General Meeting or any adjournment
thereof.
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Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. The principal activities of
its subsidiaries (the Company and the subsidiaries are
hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) are the designing,
manufacturing, marketing and trading of fine jewellery
and diamonds. Also, the Group maintains an investment
portfolio including property investment & development and
other industries.

On the manufacturing side, Continental Jewellery (Mfg)
Limited, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, mainly
engages in the product development, manufacture
and marketing of fine jewellery primarily for export
and is regarded as one of the leaders in fine jewellery
manufacturing. A substantial share of our jewellery products
is currently directed at the middle to-upper segments of the
market. We specialize in manufacturing fine jewellery in
precious metal set with diamond, ruby, emerald, sapphire,
pearl and other semiprecious stones.

The Group has production plants in Hong Kong and China.
The Group has full capabilities in jewellery design, direct
stone sourcing, stone cutting, lapidary, alloying and gold
refining. The management of the Group is known for its
commitment to quality, and its finished products are visible
testaments to that commitment.

The Group has fully-integrated diamond cutting and
polishing facilities in China. With around 1,000 skilled
workers, our facilities are best known for their quality and
ability to handle diamond cutting works on a wide range of
products.
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Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, Ph.D, JP

Group Chairman

| am pleased to present the annual report of Continental
Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) for the financial year ended 30 June 2007.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the fiscal year of 2007, the Group has achieved
a turnover of HK$1.632 billion (2006: HK$1.712 billion).
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company was
HK$114.0 million (2006: HK$50.5 million) and earnings per
share was HK41.0 cents (2006: HK18.1 cents).

In 2007, the overall market sentiment is quite mixed across
regions. In jewellery manufacturing, the year has been
challenging with an uncertain U.S. economy and weakening
of the Dollar has led to softer consumer spending in the
luxury sector. Overall, our jewellery and diamond trading
business remain highly competitive as a result of higher gold
prices, increasing production costs and the appreciation
of Renminbi. However, our non-US business remains quite
steady and slightly benefiting from the strong currencies.
Withstanding all challenges, we strive at further extending
our network of sourcing and distribution.

Over in properties, rental income continues to provide a
steady income stream to the Group. On going, Continental
aims to identify potential investment opportunities both in
Hong Kong and other countries.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, we foresee tough challenges as the market
environment intensify due to different aspects of macro-
economic changes. We remain cautious on the overall
market outlook. We will continue to focus on our strengths
and maximise the Group’s profitability through product
innovation, cost reduction and valueadded services.
Continental will focus on identifying profitable and better
return business opportunities in creating long-term and
sustainable value to our shareholders.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING

As of 30 June 2007, the Group had a moderate gearing
ratio of 0.45 (2006: 0.39), calculated on the basis of the
Group’s bank borrowings over equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company. Total cash and bank balances
were HK$102,281,000 (2006: HK$116,408,000) which
were mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, US Dollars
and British Pounds, while bank loans and overdrafts were
HK$358,779,000 (2006: HK$272,683,000) which were
mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. The movement
represents the purchase of investment properties. These
bank loans and overdrafts are secured by first legal charges
over the Group’s investment properties, certain leasehold
land and buildings, assignment of rental income of
investment properties and corporate guarantees executed by
the Company as at 30 June 2007.

In line with the Group’s prudent financial management, the
directors considered that the Group has sufficient working
capital to meet its operational requirements.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As of 30 June 2007, the Group's investment properties,
certain leasehold land and buildings with an aggregate
net book/carrying value of HK$785,086,000 (2006:
HK$473,943,000) were pledged to a bank to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

All the Group’s borrowings are denominated in local Hong
Kong Dollars and PRC Renminbi. Interest is determined on
the basis of Hong Kong inter-bank offering rates or Prime
Rate and PRC Renminbi fixed rate. There was no change
to the Group’s capital structure during the year ended 30
June 2007. In the light of the current financial position
of the Company and provided there is no unforeseeable
circumstance, the management does not anticipate the need
to change the capital structure.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION
POLICIES AND SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Group employs a total of approximately 2,400
employees with the majority in the PRC. The Group
remunerates its employees largely based on the industrial
practice. There is no share option scheme being adopted by
the Company.

EXPOSURE TO FINANCIAL RISK AND RELATED
HEDGES

The Group utilises conservative strategies on its risk
management and the market risk is kept to minimum. With
the exception of the UK subsidiary, all transactions and the
borrowings of the Group are primarily denominated mainly
in US Dollars and Hong Kong Dollars respectively. The risk
of foreign exchange fluctuations is minimal under the peg.
The Group’s cashflow and interest rate risks were managed
by means of derivative financial instruments, such as interest
rate swaps, to ensure short to medium term liquidity.
During the year, the Group did not use any other financial
instrument for hedging purposes. As of 30 June 2007, there
was no hedging instrument outstanding.
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Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, Ph.D., J.P, is the Chairman and
founder of the Group. Dr. Chan is an executive Director of
the Company and holds directorship in various subsidiaries
of the Company. He is responsible for strategic planning,
corporate development and investment of the Group.
Dr. Chan has over 49 years of experience in the jewellery
industry. He is currently the Chairman of the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council’s Jewellery Advisory Committee;
President of the Hong Kong Jewellery & Jade Manufacturers
Association; Executive Committee Member of the Diamond
Federation of Hong Kong, China Ltd.; as well as a member
of other trade associations. In community, charitable and
political involvements, Dr. Chan is the Permanent Honorary
Director of Friends of Hong Kong Association Ltd., and
Member of The Association of Chairmen of The Tung Wah
Group of Hospitals. Dr. Chan was appointed a committee
member of the City of Jiangmen Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference since 2003; and the Executive
Vice President of Jiangmen Overseas Chinese Enterprise
Federation since 2006.

Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, has been with the Group for
over 30 years and is responsible for marketing and corporate
policy development of the Group. She has over 30 years’
experience in jewellery design, product development,
production and marketing of the Group’s export business.
Ms. Cheng is the wife of Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles.

Miss Chan Wai Kei, Vicki, joined the Group in 1995.
She is responsible for retail operation and the business
administration functions in the Group. Miss Chan is a
Graduate Gemologist of the Gemological Institute of
America. She is the daughter of Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles.

Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor, joined the Group in 2000. He
is responsible for all sales and marketing activities as well
as business development and investments of the Group.
Mr. Chan graduated from Babson College in Boston,
Massachusetts with a Bachelor of Science double-degree
in Entrepreneurial Studies and Finance. He has worked in
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both banking and manufacturing industry prior to joining
the Group. Mr. Chan is currently a Board Member of
Entrepreneurs’ Organization Hong Kong, and a Committee
Member of The Hong Kong Jewellery & Jade Manufacturers
Association. He is also the Founding Chairman of the Youth
Chapter of the Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council. Mr.
Chan is the son of Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chu Wai Kok, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 31 May 1999 and was re-designated
as non-executive director on 15 October 2004. Mr. Chu is
currently practising as a Certified Public Accountant in Hong
Kong and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chu has over 25 years’
working experience in accounting and auditing sectors and
is now a partner of a leading accounting firm in Hong Kong.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Leung Hai Ming, Raymond, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director on 3 November
2003. He holds bachelor degree in Applied Science in
Civil Engineering and a Master degree in Applied Science.
Mr. Leung is a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers, Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators, Hong Kong
Institute of Construction Manager, American Society for Civil
Engineers US and Institution of Civil Engineer (UK). He has
more than 30 years’ experience in engineering, investment,
construction and project management. Mr. Leung is
director of various private companies in Hong Kong and is
an independent non-executive director of one Hong Kong
listed company. He is currently the chief executive officer
of C & L Holdings Ltd engaging in investment and business
consultancy.

Mr. Wong Kai Cheong, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 30 September 2004 and on
15 October 2004 became the chairman of the Audit
Committee. Mr. Wong is an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales. Mr.
Wong is currently practising as a Certified Public Accountant
in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is also an independent non-
executive director of several Hong Kong listed companies.
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Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, B.B.S., M.B.E., J.P. was appointed as
an independent non-executive director on 25 April 2005. Mr.
Yu is a businessman who has been actively engaged in the
construction business both in the public and private sectors
in Hong Kong for the last 29 years. He is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers. Other
than his working experience in managing a construction
company, he is also actively involved in the community
services for the community of Hong Kong and several
advisory bodies of Hong Kong Government for over 26 years
and subsequently awarded as an unofficial Justice of the
Peace by the Hong Kong Government in the year 1989.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheng Nai Yan, Jackson, is a director of Continental
Jewellery (Mfg) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. Mr. Cheng has been with the Group for 32 years
and has over 25 years' experience in jewellery retail, export
sales and stone purchasing. He holds a Graduate Gemologist
degree. Mr. Cheng is now responsible for the Group’s
diamond and stone purchasing and sale as well as business
activities in China.

Mr. Ko Chi Ming, joined the Group in October 2005
as finance manager and was appointed as Qualified
Accountant of the Company with effect from 26 March
2007 pursuant to Rule 3.24 of the Listing Rules. Mr.
Ko obtained both his Bachelor and Master’s degrees in
Accounting from Monash University in Australia and a
Postgraduate diploma in Corporate Administration from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, certified practising accountant of CPA Australia
and an associate member of both the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators in UK. He is also an associate
member of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He has
over 15 years of professional and commercial experience in
accounting, auditing, taxation and finance.

During the financial year, most of the Group’s management
and administrative services were provided by the executive
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries as mentioned
above, and except for the above, no employees of the Group
who are not directors of the Company or its subsidiaries are
regarded as part of the senior management.
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices. The Board considers
shareholders can maximise their benefits from good
corporate governance.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions
set out in Appendix 14 Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code"”) of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) throughout the accounting year ended 30
June 2007, except for the deviations from Code Provisions
A.2.1, A.4.1 and A.4.2 which are explained in the following
relevant paragraphs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND THE
COMPANY'S PRACTICES

A.1. Board of Directors

An issuer should be headed by an effective board which
should assume responsibility for leadership and control of
the issuer and be collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the issuer by directing and supervising the issuer’s
affairs. Directors should take decisions objectively in the
interests of the issuer.
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Regular Board meetings are held at approximately quarterly
intervals. In addition, special Board meetings will be held
when necessary. Attendance of individual Directors at Board
meetings and other board committee meetings during
financial year ended 30 June 2007 are as follows:

ERHEBTRY
Meetings Attended / Held
EVEES FHESS
23 ]
Meetings of
Meetings of  Remuneration
Audit Committee Committee
- 11
2/2 -
2/2 11
2/2 -
2/2 1/1

Mr Chan Wai Lap, Victor was appointed as director on 20 October
2006 and therefore, has not attended the meetings which were
held prior to 20 October 2006.

Directors are consulted to include matters in the agenda for
regular Board meetings.

Dates of regular Board meetings are scheduled at least
14 days in advance to provide sufficient notice to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. For all other Board
meetings, reasonable notice will be given.
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Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and all
applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

Minutes of the Board, the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee are duly kept and such minutes
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice by any Director.

Minutes of the Board and Board Committees have recorded
in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and
the Board Committees, decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed.
Draft and final versions of minutes of the Board are sent to
all Directors for their comment and records respectively.

Should Directors need independent professional advice, the
Board will appoint professional advisors to render the advice.
The costs associated with such professional services will be
borne by the Company.

According to the current Board practice, any material
transaction, which involves a conflict of interest for a
substantial shareholder or a Director, will be considered and
dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting.
Independent Non-executive Directors who have no material
interest in the transaction will be presented at such board
meeting.
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A.2. Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

There are two key aspects of the management of every
issuer — the management of the board and the day-to-day
management of the issuer’s business. There should be a
clear division of these responsibilities at the board level to
ensure a balance of power and authority, so that power is not
concentrated in any one individual.

Code Provision A.2.1. provides that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles is the Chairman of the
Company. Dr. Chan oversees the direction of the Group and
also provides leadership for the Board. He ensures that the
Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities,
and that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the
Board in a timely manner. Dr. Chan is also responsible to
ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising
at Board meetings and that all Directors receive adequate
information, which must be complete and reliable, in a
timely manner. Dr. Chan is the husband of Ms Cheng Siu Yin,
Shirley.

Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley is the Managing Director of the
Company. She is responsible for day-to-day management
and the marketing activities of the Group. Ms Cheng is the
wife of Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles.

Although the Company does not have a post of chief
executive officer, the Board considers that there is adequate
segregation of duties within the Board to ensure a balance of
power and authority.
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A.3. Board Composition

The Board should have a balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business of
the issuer. The board should ensure that changes to its
composition can be managed without undue disruption. The
board should include a balanced composition of executive
and non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) so that there is a strong independent
element on the board, which can effectively exercise
independent judgment. Non-executive directors should be of
sufficient caliber and number for their views to carry weight.

As at 30 June 2007, the Board comprises four Executive
Directors, namely Dr. Chan Sing Chuk Charles, Ms Cheng
Siu Yin Shirley, Miss Chan Wai Kei Vicki and Mr. Chan Wai
Lap Victor; one Non-executive Director, namely, Mr Chu Wai
Kok and three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr Leung Hai Ming Raymond, Mr Wong Kai Cheong and
Mr Yu Shiu Tin Paul. All Directors are expressly identified by
categories of Executive Directors, Non-executive Director
and Independent Non-executive Directors, in all corporate
communications that disclose the names of Directors of the
Company.

Dr. Chan is the husband of Ms Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley and
Miss Chan Wai Kei Vicki and Mr. Chan Wai Lap Victor is the
daughter and son, respectively, of Dr. Chan and Ms Cheng.
Miss Chan Wai Kei Vicki is sister of Mr. Chan Wai Lap Victor.

Biographies which include relationships of Directors are
set out in pages 19 to 21 of the annual report, which
demonstrate a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and
gualifications among members of the Board.
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A.4. Appointment, Re-election and Removal

There should be a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new directors to the
board. There should be plans in place for orderly succession
for appointments to the board. All directors should be
subject to re-election at regular intervals. An issuer must
explain the reasons for the resignation or removal of any
director.

Code Provision A.4.1.provides that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election.

Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company do not have a specific term of
appointment but are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election in accordance with articles 115(A) and 115(D)
of the articles of association of the Company. The Board
considers that the deviation from Code Provision A.4.1. is not
material as Non-executive Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election in view of the small number of
total directors of the Company, the Directors will consider
to adopt the Code Provision should the number of Directors
increase substantially.

Code Provision A.4.2 provides that all directors appointed
to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election
by shareholders at the first general meeting after their
appointment. Every director, including those appointed for a
specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

During the year, relevant amendments were made to the
Articles of Association of the Company with the approval
of shareholders at the Company’s Annual General Meeting
held on 11 December 2006 to align with the Code Provision
Ad.2.
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The Directors consider that it is not necessary to have a
nomination committee for the time being. The Directors will
review this from time to time and will establish a nomination
should there be a need.

A proposal for the appointment of a new Director will be
considered and reviewed by the Board. All candidates must
be able to meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and
3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director should also meet
the independent criteria set out in Rules 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

A.5. Responsibilities of Directors

Every director is required to keep abreast of his responsibilities
as a director of an issuer and of the conduct, business activities
and development of that issuer. Given the essential unitary
nature of the board, non-executive directors have the same
duties of care and skill and fiduciary duties as executive
directors.

Every newly appointed Director of the Company is ensured
to have a proper understanding of the operations and
business of the Group and that he/she is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities under statue and common law, the Listing
Rules, applicable legal and regulatory requirements and the
business governance policies of the Group. The Directors are
continually updated with legal and regulatory developments,
business and strategic development of the Group to enable
the discharge of their responsibilities.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
are highly skilled professionals with expertise and experience
in the field of accounting, financial management and
business. All Independent Non-executive Directors take
an active role in Board meetings to bring in independent
judgment to bear on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards
of conducts. They scrutinize the Company’s performance
in achieving agreed corporate goals and objectives, and
monitor the reporting of performance. They also take the
lead where potential conflicts of interest arise and serve
the audit and remuneration committees. The Company has
received written confirmation from all the Independent Non-
executive Directors concerning their independence. The
Board considers all of them are independent.

Every Director is aware that he/she should give sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Company.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. All Directors have
confirmed, following enquiry by the Company, that they
have complied with the required standard set out in Model
Code throughout the year ended 30 June 2007.

A.6. Supply of and Access to Information

Directors should be provided in a timely manner with
appropriate information in such form and of such quality
as will enable them to make an informed decision and to
discharge their duties and responsibilities as directors of an
issuer.
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In respect of regular Board meetings, and so far as
practicable in all other cases, an agenda and accompanying
board papers are sent in full to all Directors in a timely
manner and at least 3 days before the indented date of a
Board or Board Committee meeting.

Management is regularly reminded by the Company
Secretary and Qualified Accountant that they have an
obligation to supply the Board and Board Committees with
adequate information in a timely manner to enable it to
make informed decisions. The information supplied must
be complete and reliable. The Board and each Director shall
have separate and independent access to the Company’s
senior management.

All Directors are entitled to have access to Board papers,
minutes and related materials. Where queries are raised by
Directors, steps are taken to respond as promptly and fully as
possible.

B.1. The Level and Make-up of Remuneration and Disclosure

An issuer should disclose information relating to its directors’
remuneration policy and other remuneration related matters.
There should be a formal and transparent procedure for
setting policy on executive directors’ remuneration and for
fixing the remuneration packages for all directors. Level
of remuneration should be sufficient to attract and retain
the directors needed to run the company successfully, but
companies should avoid paying more than is necessary for
this purpose. No director should be involved in deciding his
own remuneration.

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee
with specific written terms of reference as set out in Code
Provisions B.1.3 (a) to (f) of the Code. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for making recommendations to
the Board regarding the Company’s remuneration policy, and
for the formulation and review of the specific remuneration
packages of all Executive Directors and senior executives of
the Group.
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A majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee
are Independent Non-executive Directors. This Committee is
chaired by Mr Leung Hai Ming Raymond. The other members
are Mr Yu Shiu Tin Paul and Ms Cheng Siu Yin Shirley.

The meeting of the Committee is held at least once a year or
when necessary. All members attended the first meeting of
the Committee held on 19 October 2005.

Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments of 2007 are
set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources, including access to professional advice, to
discharge its duties if considered necessary.

C.1. Financial Reporting

The board should present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the company’s performance
position and prospects.

Management has provided such explanation and
information to the Board as would enable the Board to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before the Board for approval.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records and preparing financial statements of each financial
period, which shall give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for that
period. In preparing the financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2007, the Directors have made judgments
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable and prepared
the financial statements on a going concern basis.
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A statement by the auditors about their reporting
responsibilities is included in the Report of the Independent
Auditors on pages 49 to 51 of the annual report for the year
ended 30 June 2007.

The Board’s responsibility to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment extend to annual and interim
reports, other price-sensitive announcements and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and
reports to regulators as well as information required to be
disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

C.2. Internal Controls

The Board should ensure that the issuer maintains sound
and effective internal controls to safeguard the shareholder’s
investment and the issuer’s assets.

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal
controls and for reviewing its effectiveness through the
Audit Committee. The Board requires management to
establish and maintain sound and effective internal controls.
Evaluation of the Group’s internal controls covering financial,
operational compliance controls and risk management
functions had been done on an ad hoc basis. With effect
from 1 July 2006, review of internal controls on different
systems will be done on a systematic rotational basis based
on the risk assessments of the operations and controls.

C.3. Audit Committee

The Board should establish formal and transparent
arrangements for considering how it will apply the financial
reporting and internal control principles and for maintaining
an appropriate relationship with the company’s auditors. The
audit committee established by an issuer pursuant to the
Listing Rules should have clear terms of reference.
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The Company has established an Audit Committee with
specific written terms of reference which states clearly
with its authority and duties. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee have included the duties set out in Code
Provisions C.3.3 (a) to (n) of the Code, with appropriate
modifications where necessary. The Audit Committee has
made available its terms of reference, explaining its role and
the authority delegated to it by the Board.

As set out in the terms of reference, the Audit Committee
is responsible for reviewing the financial reporting system
and internal control procedures, annual report, financial
statements and interim report.

The Audit Committee comprises one Non-executive Director
and three Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company and is chaired by Mr Wong Kai Cheong.

As issues raised by the Committee have been addressed
by management. The work and findings of the Committee
have been reported to the Board. During the year, no issues
brought to the attention of management and the Board
were of sufficient importance to require disclosure in the
Annual Report.

The Board agrees with the Audit Committee’s proposal for
the re-appointment of Grant Thornton as the Company’s
external auditors for 2008. During the year, Grant Thornton
had not provided any non-audit services to the Company.

Auditors’ remuneration for the year is set out in note 9 to the
financial statements.
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Full minutes of Audit Committee meetings are kept by the
company secretary. Draft and final versions of minutes of the
Audit Committee meetings are sent to all members of the
Committee for their comments and record respectively, in
both cases within a reasonable time after the meeting.

The Audit Committee does not have a former partner of the
Company’s existing audit firm.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources,
including the advice of external auditors, to discharge its
duties.

D.1. Management Functions

An issuer should have a formal schedule of matters
specifically reserved to the board for its decision. The board
should give clear directions to management as to the matters
that must be approved by the board before decisions are
made on behalf of the issuer.

The Board is responsible for formulating overall strategy,
monitoring and controlling the performance of the Group
whilst managing the Group’s business is the responsibility of
the management.

When the Board delegates aspects of its management and
administration functions to the management, it has given
clear directions as to the powers of the management,
in particular, with respect to the circumstances where
management shall report back and obtain prior approval
from the Board before making decisions or entering into any
commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Company has established schedules of Matters Reserved
to the Board for Decision. The Board shall review those
arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the needs of the Group.
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D.2. Board Committees

Board committees should be formed with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with the committees’
authority and duties.

Apart from Audit Committee (particulars are disclosed under
C.3) and Remuneration Committee (particulars are disclosed
under B.1), there are no other board committees established
by the Board. Where board committees are established to
deal with matters, the Board shall prescribe sufficiently clear
terms of reference to enable such Committees to discharge
their functions properly. The terms of reference of board
Committees shall require such Committees to report back
to the Board on their decisions or recommendations, unless
there are legal or regulatory restrictions on their ability to do
S0.

E.1. Effective Communication

The board should endeavour to maintain an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use annual
general meetings or other general meetings to communicate
with shareholders and encourage their participation.

At the 2006 Annual General Meeting, a separate resolution
was proposed by the Chairman in respect of each separate
issue, including the re-elections of Directors.

The Chairman of the Board and the chairmen of the Audit
and Remuneration Committees shall attend the 2007 Annual
General Meeting to answer questions of shareholders.
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E.2. Voting by Poll

The issuer should regularly inform shareholders of the
procedure for voting by poll and ensure compliance with the
requirements about voting by poll contained in the Listing
Rules and the constitutional documents of the issuer.

The Company sets out in its circular to shareholders the
procedures for and the rights of shareholders to demand a
poll. Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company,
at any general meeting of the Company (including the EGM)
a resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall be decided
on a show of hands unless:

(A) (before or on the declaration of the results of the show
of hands or the withdrawal of any other demand for a
poll) a poll is demanded by:

(i)  the Chairman of the meeting; or

(i) at least three shareholders present in person or
by proxy for the time being entitled to vote at the
meeting; or

(i) by any shareholder or shareholders present in
person or by proxy and representing not less
than one-tenth of the total voting rights of all
the shareholders having the right to vote at the
meeting; or



Annual Report 2007 4

Corporate Governance Report m {8 E 4R

4 —RRBRBEHELR
BHBENTAE LRE
2R 2 MEEARER
B AR 2 PR 5 2
ME@ETH 2 —F Lk
TREHSERE -

(B) MRELWSTRIRE - XIBERZE
m//\LXj:XmEEt%\H% °

B EMRAFE13.393) 1K K&
FTER/KNEZEEE AR

FAFEZAERKREERE  (HEITA
PAD 4RI ZRES % LA+ » MBS

FIERT (BRERSUEFHAKRR
- RRGBREZEZEREZE
BETIETRERR) BRUAREFTAE
R oo INTE UL FIER N BRI E

NETRA ARSI FEES S
IBREEERFEMEZERREKRE
AR ZBEE - LLERUEF
FRFRFAMIEZAERE ©

RABHHMBEMBRERRKER

FREUAR IR IEBEFK AR T LT
TR REERBES LXRATA
RBENZIRREELD - AR
BERMREZH(MAEFHAR
R) o RRBIHERMAZREIGEE
BE MACERIEER o

(iv) by a shareholder or shareholders present in person
or by proxy and holding shares in the Company
conferring a right to vote at the meeting being
shares on which an aggregate sum has been paid
up equal to not less than one-tenth of the total
sum paid up on all the shares conferring that
right; or

(B) a resolution is required under the Listing Rules to be
decided by way of a poll.

In accordance with Listing Rules 13.39 (3), the Chairman of
a meeting and/or Directors who, individually or collectively,
hold proxies in respect of shares representing 5% or more of
the total voting rights at a particular meeting shall demand
a poll in certain circumstances where, on a show of hands,
a meeting votes in the opposite manner to that instructed in
those proxies. If a poll is required under such circumstances,
the Chairman of the meeting shall disclose to the meeting
the total number of votes represented by all proxies held by
directors indicating an opposite vote to the votes cast at the
meeting on a show of hands.

The Company shall count all proxy votes and, except where
a poll is required, the Chairman of a meeting shall indicate to
the meeting the level of proxies lodged on each resolution,
and the balance for and against the resolution, after it has
been dealt with on a show of hands. The Company shall
ensure that votes cast are properly counted and recorded.
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The Chairman of a meeting shall at the commencement of
the meeting ensure that an explanation is provided to the
shareholders of:

1. the procedure for demanding a poll by shareholders
before putting a resolution to the vote on a show of
hands; and

2. the detailed procedures for conducting a poll and then
answer any questions from shareholders whenever
voting by way of a poll is required.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code"”) contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules.

The Company has made specific enquiry with all Directors
and all of them confirmed that, for the financial year
ended 30 June 2007, they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code.
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The directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 30 June 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 19 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 30 June 2007 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 52 to 154.

An interim dividend of HK$0.01 per ordinary share was paid
on 26 April 2007. The directors recommend the payment
of a final dividend of HK$0.02 per ordinary share in respect
of the year, to shareholders on the register of members
on 12 December 2007. This recommendation has been
incorporated in the financial statements as an allocation
of retained profits within the equity section of the balance
sheet.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the investment properties of the
Group are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for investment
purposes are set out on page 155 of the annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in note 35 to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 30 June 2007, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, as computed in accordance with Section
79B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amounted
to HK$154,233,000, of which HK$5,596,000 has been
proposed as final dividend for the year.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
156.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
totaling HK$166,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 52% of the total sales for the year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted
to 29%. The largest supplier and the five largest suppliers
accounted for 31% and 45%, respectively, of the Group’s
total purchases for the year.

As far as the directors of the Company are aware, neither
the directors, their respective associates nor any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley
Chan Wai Kei, Vicki
Chan Wai Lap, Victor
(appointed on 20 October 2006)

Non-executive directors:
Chu Wai Kok

Leung Hai Ming*

Wong Kai Cheong*

Yu Shiu Tin*

* Independent non-executive directors

In accordance with Article 115(A) and 115(D) of the Articles
of Association, Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, Mr. Chu Wai Kok
and Mr. Wong Kai Cheong shall retire from office by rotation
and all of them are eligible for re-election at the annual
general meeting.

Each of the three independent non-executive directors has
submitted written confirmation in respect of the factors
set out in Rule 3.13 of The Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) concerning
his independence. The Board considers each of the three
independent non-executive directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 19 to
21 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles has a service contract with the
Company for an indefinite period, which may be terminated
by either party by giving three months’ written notice.

Save as disclosed above, no director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements, no
director had a material interest in any contract of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group were entered into or in existence during the year.



Directors’ Report s EEERE

EREHRRM - ARRMRE
SZER

RZZEZELFANA=ZTH BEF
#H REE G ([ #FH LB )
%+£%*_§£+ EmEEZ
ERAMMAREE EEREE B
%Ai&K“T&E@M&ICﬁ
NEEGRAE+RIMATEE) 2
%ﬁ&hﬁ MHERmh MEFZE
R LT AR ESETES
x%mﬁ E<r Al ([1R2E<FRI ) B
RN A MR wm R R
HERNREHFZREWT -

BEEHE Name of director

BREEZ Chan Sing Chuk, Charles

/] N3 Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley
RIEE Chu Wai Kok

Personal interest

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2007, the interests and short positions of the
directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of
Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the
“Model Code") were as set out below:

PN
SREE0I10BTZEER EARRD BT
Number of ordinary shares of BREABDL

HK$0.10 each in the Company
EARER ARIER

Corporate interest

Percentage of the
Company’s issued
share capital

- 123,786,000 44.24%
(PH5E) (Note)

- 123,786,000 44.24%
(PH5E) (Note)

8,000 - -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(continued)

Note: Such interests are held by a company, Tamar Investments Group
Limited, which is wholly owned by Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
J.P.and Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley.

Except as disclosed above, at the balance sheet date, none of
the directors or their respective associates had any personal,
family, corporate or other interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of
Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate granted to any
director or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire such
rights in any other corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 30 June 2007, no person, other than Dr. Chan Sing
Chuk, Charles and Madam Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, whose
interests are set out in the section “Directors’ interests and
short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
above, had registered an interest in 5% or more of the
issued share capital of the Company that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected party transactions, which also
constituted as related party transactions are set out in note
41(d) and 41(e) to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at least
25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was held by
the public as at the date of this report.
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BEREEE AUDIT COMMITTEE

RARIEREBERERRATRIZHE The Company has an audit committee which was established
R EZEES  WEBTERA in accordance with the requirements of the Code of Best
KB RmIZ T R NEPESIE o Practice, for the purposes of reviewing and providing
EREZESE M AEEMENZ S supervision over the financial reporting process and internal
TR REE - BHREERAZE controls of the Group. The audit committee has discussed
TRFENET  WERMTPHK the Group's accounting policies and basis adopted, the
EEPBRE - RAFHREAH - & financial and internal control process of the Group and has
BZEBEHARB Z =B reviewed the interim and annual financial statements. As of
TEER—BIFNITEFHAK - the date of this report, the audit committee comprises the

three independent non-executive directors and one non-
executive director of the Company.
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AUDITORS

The Company’s auditors, Grant Thornton retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

For and on behalf of the Board

Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 October 2007
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Certified Public Accountants
Member of Grant Thornton International
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Grant Thornton &
Yy f AT

To the members of Continental Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set out
on pages 52 to 154, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 30 June 2007, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 30 June 2007 and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Grant Thornton

Certified Public Accountants
13th Floor, Gloucester Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 24 October 2007
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2007 2006
Hrat FET FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
g Revenue 7 1,632,180 1,711,670
SHERAR Cost of sales (1,474,303) (1,557,540)
E7 Gross profit 157,877 154,130
HHE R AR Selling and distribution costs (28,397) (23,939)
ﬂﬂlgﬁ Administrative expenses (61,884) (52,055)
I A /(B R) Other operating income/(expenses) (8,695) (6,029)
Txéfi%% AFESE Changes in fair value of investment properties 216,765 14,300
RELEER BRI Profit from operations 275,666 86,407
AR Finance costs 8 (17,636) (15,610)
i NG Share of results of associates (550) 156
EEERENERES Share of results of jointly controlled entities 2,314 426
BRETISH ADER Profit before income tax 9 259,794 71,379
PSRl Income tax expense 10 (52,898) (16,324)
AEERF Profit for the year 206,896 55,055
PAT RS Attributable to:
ARAERFEA Equity holders of the Company 11 113,986 50,537
DR FE S Minority interests 92,910 4518
AEEGEF Profit for the year 206,896 55,055
RE Dividends 12
H ] Interim 2,798 2,798
FRARE Proposed final 5,596 8,394
8,394 11,192
ERADRER Earnings per share for profit
8 AEEA attributable to the equity
BREA holders of the Company
during the year 13
—BEK — Basic HK41.0 cents 51l K18.1 cents /&l
&% - Diluted A N/A TNERNA
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2007 2006
HizF FET FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
InBEE Non-current assets
Y% - BB KA Property, plant and equipment 16 49,009 54,680
THE b R E Leasehold land/Land use rights 17 9,538 9,777
YR E Investment properties 18 775,955 467,800
i INE P T Interests in associates 20 4,029 4,455
REREH B 2w Interests in jointly controlled entities 21 96,969 94,538
AHHEZemEE Available-for-sale financial assets 22 18,507 16,325
EHﬁJEJ%Z/TA Long term receivables 23 8,724 12,367
L%ﬁlﬁiéﬁ?‘ Deferred tax assets 33 18,558 19,811
981,289 679,753
mBEE Current assets
A= Inventories 24 347,351 335,047
E 5 e IE Trade receivables 25 193,260 173,729
TEFTFIE Bzi& Prepayments, deposits and
H e YR IE other receivables 30,029 33,966
REAEWRIE Current portion of long term
EﬂﬁM receivables 23 3,643 3,643
AEEFFAEZR Financial assets at fair value
Z‘ﬁmﬁﬁ? through profit or loss 26 22,513 17,628
?)TE%E&IE: Derivative financial instruments 29 39 561
g NI = Due from associates 20 516 2,419
B S R4 %UEE‘E*{K Due from a jointly controlled entity 21 2,110 2,627
HE RIRTTEH Cash and bank balances 27 102,281 116,408
701,742 686,028
REERE Current liabilities
B F N FRIA Trade payables 28 (211,031) (215,407)
E@Jﬁﬁmlﬁi\&ﬁ%\%%ﬁﬁ Other payables and accruals (43,167) (44,436)
T IE RS Provision for tax (35,762) (33,514)
PTEEMTAE Derivative financial instruments 29 - (312)
FE S R Al 5IE Due to associates 20 (607) (672)
FET B8 5 508 Due to a related party 30 (148,742)
FEAS HE AR B B8 5K IE Due to jointly controlled entities 21 (39) =
LEHIRREK Loans from minority shareholders 31 = (32,314)
RITERRES —FEF Bank loans and overdrafts, secured 32 (8,282) (24,566)
(447,630) (351,221)
mEEEFE Net current assets 254,112 334,807
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2007 2006
it FET FEIT
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
BREERRBERE Total assets less current liabilities 1,235,401 1,014,560
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
DVETRER Loans from minority shareholders 31 (21,505) (1,125)
RIENIER A Deferred tax liabilities 33 (63,209) (20,409)
IRITER— FHEHR Bank loans, secured 32 (350,497) (248,117)
(435,211) (269,651)
BEFE Net assets 800,190 744,909
s EQUITY
RATEEEFEA Equity attributable to
iR the Company'’s equity holders
O EBTTIRA Issued capital 34 27,980 27,980
Ex=] Reserves 35 765,406 665,707
R R 2R B Proposed final dividend 5,596 8,394
798,982 702,081
DY RER Minority interests 1,208 42,828
AR Total equity 800,190 744,909
BREEZE Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
EFE Director
BB/ Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley
s Director
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2007 2006
it FET FETT
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FREEE Non-current assets
R YNCIw % Interests in subsidiaries 19 557,029 543,536
I RN W - e Interests in associates 20 2 2
RHEEWEIE Long term receivables 23 6,661 7,619
563,692 551,157
RENE=E Current assets
TEREIE « e RHAM Prepayments, deposits and
FEW RIB other receivables 73 73
REIEKHRIEZ Current portion of long
BNHEAEL 2 term receivables 23 958 958
FE BT /BB A B 5RIE Due from a subsidiary 19 52,300 54,494
JE W & R B IR Due from an associate 20 8 8
HE RIRTTEEHS Cash and bank balances 27 85 86
53,424 55,619
REERE Current liabilities
Ho A R0 [ FE S B B Other payables and accruals (491) (382)
HIBRE Provision for tax (2,433) (2,409)
(2,924) (2,791)
REBEEFRE Net current assets 50,500 52,828
EEFE Net assets 614,192 603,985
R EQUITY
KATREEFEA Equity attributable to
bR Company’s equity holders
B2 E1TIRA Issued capital 34 27,980 27,980
R Reserves 35 580,616 567,611
R R BARE B Proposed final dividend 5,596 8,394
HERE TS Total equity 614,192 603,985
BREEZE Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
EF Director
/)N 38 Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley
EE Director



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement s R8I EFRER

For the year ended 30 June 2007
HE-ZTLFERA=THILFE

2007 2006
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
REEBRERE Cash flows from operating activities
BRFT{SH R0 & Al Profit before income tax 259,794 71,379
EEANEEE Adjustments for:
AE R Finance costs 17,636 15,610
iy NS Share of results of associates 550 (156)
FEAG R RIS A Share of results of jointly controlled entities (2,314) (426)
M - BEREEBITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 10,324 9,766
FHE 14 N2+ b (5 PR AR £ Amortisation of leasehold land
and land use rights 239 239
EEERMISH Bad debts written off 81 873
RGBS & N B 2 FRIAEEEH Amount due from an associate written off 620 2,507
S B A mIUES Gain on disposal of a subsidiary = (13,036)
FERE Provision against inventories 2,497 2,046
REAFE Y ERIE (BEE] ), B (Write back)/Provision for long term receivables (363) 22,341
FEREXEEREE Provision for legal and professional fee - 5,023
2 2 e RIE (BE[a]) H i (Write back)/Provision for trade receivables (5,088) 2,131
o th B W R IB B Provision for other receivables - 534
Y% - BB MR ERERE Provision for impairment of property,
plant and equipment 2,629 -
AEfHECeREE Impairment loss on of available-for-sale

RIEEE financial assets 146 1,194
REE N BB S5 Provision for impairment on the net

Vo RIEREL] investments in an associate = 3,898
JE Tt & R B 5RIE Provision for impairment on an amount due

BB R from an associate = 1,599
FEUEE R ) & BE TR IE Provision for impairment on an amount due

B from a jointly controlled entity 11,670 =
HEWE - KEK&E (Gain)/Loss on disposal of property,

(Wzs),/ &8 plant and equipment (104) 29
REYENTEZ Changes in fair value of investment properties (216,765) (14,300)
PTESR T ANFEES Fair value changes on derivative

financial instruments 210 (249)

LB L EB P 2 K E R Operating profit before working capital changes 81,762 111,002

FEEM Increase in inventories (14,801) (1,205)

B 5 e IEE N Increase in trade receivables (13,097) (69,142)
TBRARIE - e REM Decrease/(Increase) in prepayments,

FEM IR A, (3 0) deposits and other receivables 3,937 (300)
AT EGFABR (Increase)/Decrease in financial assets at

SRVEE (%), R fair value through profit or loss (4,885) 11,959
BN RS 2R, (3 0) Decrease/(Increase) in balances with associates 1,218 (1,373)
HEEH TR 2 Decrease/(Increase) in balance with

B, (3En) a jointly controlled entity 556 (2,609)
B 5 N H T FRIE K Decrease in trade and other payables

Bt E AR and accruals (5,645) (25,266)




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement s S4B £ 72X

For the year ended 30 June 2007
HE-_ZTHEA=THILFE

Annual Report 2007 5§

200_7 2006
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
KEEE RS Cash generated from operations 49,045 23,066
2 F B Interest paid (17,636) (15,610)
B A T R . Dividend received from associates - 175
BETIRE Dividend paid (11,192) (8,394)
B EBFER Hong Kong profits tax paid (6,630) (8,639)
s s (AT )IR4F%  Net cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities 13,587 (9,402)
RETHRERE Cash flows from investing activities
WM Z B M RiE Purchases of property, plant and equipment (5,599) (9,665)
W —TB & & W Purchase of an investment property (78,190) =
ﬁ’iﬂﬁ@% Jﬁ%&ﬁxﬁ Proceeds from disposal of property,
Fr{S 3K plant and equipment 432 10
L g /> %ﬁ(ﬂx?%ﬁ?’i Acquisition of minority interests (3,382) =
WEEHT B A A (FOBRE B Acquisition of subsidiary (net of cash and
e LIS ER) cash equivalents acquired) (7.920) -
HERRBESREEMSHIA  Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets - 2,100
k=SNG R Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary - 155,109
EEEHEWIE Repayment of long term receivables 2,579 3,651
R HIfE U R IE I N Increase in long term receivables - (1,174)
L EHE S B B8R & 2 38N Increase in investment in a jointly
controlled entity (117) (500)
INE KT L RE S E R Increase in loan to a jointly controlled entity (11,670) (4,000)
WEEEES,(FTA)IREFE  Net cash (used in)/generated from
investing activities (103,867) 145,531
RETEHRESRE Cash flows from financing activities
EiE— %Q%ﬁ(ﬂxﬁk%’\ Repayment of loan from a minority shareholder ~ (23,500) (18,893)
?%{Hﬁ%g Loan from minority shareholders 15,100 460
HIRITE R New bank loans 359,000 39,808
EEIRITER Repayment of bank loans (273,017) (70,580)
MEEBEL (FTR)IEEEE  Net cash generated from/(used in)
financing activities 77,583 (49,205)
HERBELEE2 OAL) Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
R AR cash equivalents (12,697) 86,924
FHY2RERASERH Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year 116,408 29,861
IMNBIERE T 2 BT Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes, net (1,543) (377)
FHRZBESRASERE Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 102,168 116,408
ReRBESEHEZERDN Analysis of balances of cash and
cash equivalents
Re RIRTTHEER Cash and bank balances 66,858 63,297
HHATF HATE IR Short term time deposits 35,423 53,111
102,281 116,408
RITIESE — HEIF Bank overdrafts, secured (113) -
102,168 116,408
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REks R
RIREREAREES Minority ~ Total
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company interest  Equity
BEf Bt FIAK EXRE i R
e RER e s EffRE REEN AHRE Azt
Share Non- Exchange Investment Proposed
Issued  premium distributable Other fluctuation revaluation  Retained final
capital  account  reserve reserve  reserve  profits  dividend Total
7Er  TEr  TEr TEr  FEr  TEr  FEr  TEr TR TEn
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
RZZZAFCA-AzE8 : Balanceat 1 July 2005 271980 158373 273,606 745 - 193,042 550 659342 38310 697,652
ERIMEATR Exchange differences on
BEDREHRS translation of the
FEEZ BN ZR financial statements
of foreign subsidiaries
and associates - - - 635 - - - 635 - 635
A ESHAEATE Changein fair value of
LHE avallable-forsale
financial assets - - - - (39 - - (39) - (39)
EREERTHAL Net income/lexpenses)
WA/ (%) 5% recognised directly
in equity - - - 635 (39) - - 596 - 596
REERF Profit for the year - - - - - 50537 - 50537 4518 55055
EREEAZUAREZEE  Total recognised income
and expense for
the year - - - 635 (39 50537 - 5113 4518 55,651
EN-ZERERERS Payment of final 2005
dvidend - - - - - - (559)  (5,59%) = (5,5%)
T EERE Interim 2006 dividend - - - - - Q7% - 2719 - 219
BE-ZENERSRS Proposed final 2006
dividend - - - - - (8,394) 8,394 - - -
ZZERERB=THzE#H  Balance at 30 June 2006 27980 158373*  273,606* 1,380% (39)* 232,387+ 8394 702,081 42828 744,909
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Rk Eaf
RAAEREARERS Minority ~ Total
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company interest  Equity
g&f Rt FARK ERRE k& B
Rx  EEE B AtEE i EfiRE REEN KBRS 3t
Share Non- Exchange  Investment Proposed
Issued  premium distributable Other fluctuation revaluation  Retained final
capital  account  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits  dividend Total
FAr  TAr  TEr  TEn TR TEr TEn  TEn  TEn TR TEn
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
RZENEAA=TRR Balance at 30 June 2006
ZEENELA-HuER: and 1 July 2006: 27980 158313 273606 - 1,380 (39 232387 8394 702,081 4288 744909
FEBIMBRTR Exchange differences on
BenTmHRE translation of the financial
FEt B ER statements of foreign
subsidiaries and associates - - - - 558 - - - 558 - 558
TRIECHAELTE Change in fair value of
L8 avalable-forsale financia
assets - - - - - 2328 - - 2328 - 2328
BRERRTHRL Net income recognised
WAEE directly in equity = = = = 558 2318 - - 2886 - 2,836
REERF Profit for the year - - - - - - 11396 - 11396 92910 2068%
ERERRZMAREREE Total recognised income and
expense for the year - - - - 558 238 113986 - 116812 92910 209782
Wi e hRER Acquisition of minority interests - - -8 - - - - B9 (134530 (143309)
T -EENERGRE Payment of final 2006 dividend - - - - - - - (B3 (83%) - (B39
RRLERERE Interim 2007 dividend - - - - - - -1 -
RE-FRLERERE Proposed final 2007 dividend - - - - - - 559 55% - - -
ZEEEERASTEzER  Balanceat30 June 2007 27980 158373 273,606* (8779 1,938 2,89*  337,979* 559 798,982 1,208 800,190
o ZERERBEGEEEABRPZE L These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of

A 765,406,000 87T (Z BT /N4F
665,707,000/87T) °

HK$765,406,000 (2006: HK$665,707,000) in the consolidated balance

sheet.
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Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong. The
address of its registered office is Flats M & N, 1st Floor, Kaiser
Estate, Phase Ill, 11 Hok Yuen Street, Hunghom, Kowloon,
Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the following activities:

Design, manufacturing, marketing and trading of fine
jewellery and diamonds

Property investment

Investment

The financial statements on pages 52 to 154 have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
financial statements also include the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”).

The financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2007
were approved for issue by the board of directors on 24
October 2007.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HKFRSs

From 1 July 2006, the Group has adopted the new and
amended HKFRSs which are first effective on 1 July 2006
and relevant to the Group. The adoption of these HKFRSs
has resulted in change in the Group’s accounting policy on
financial guarantee contracts. This change in accounting
policy has had no material effect on the amounts reported
for the current and prior accounting periods. Other than
this, the adoption of these new and amended HKFRSs did
not result in significant changes in the Group’s accounting
policies but gave rise to additional disclosures.

The Group has not early adopted the following HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective. The directors of
the Company are currently assessing the impact of these
HKFRSs but are not yet in a position to state whether
they would have material financial impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendment to HKAS 1 "Presentation of Financial
Statements” — Capital Disclosures '

HKAS 23 (Revised) “Borrowing Costs" °
HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” '
HKFRS 8 "Operating Segments”

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 10 “Interim Financial Reporting
and Impairment” 2

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 11 “Group and Treasury Share Transactions”®

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 12 “Service Concession Arrangements” *
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HKFRSs (continued)

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 13

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 14

“Customer Loyalty Programmes” ®

“The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding Requirements and
their Interaction” *

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 November
2006

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial assets and liabilities, which are
stated at fair values. The measurement bases are fully
described in the accounting policies below.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

3.3

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 30 June each year.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to
control the financial and operating policies so as to
obtain benefits from their activities. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are excluded from consolidation from the date that
control ceases.

Business combinations (other than for combining
entities under common control) are accounted for
by applying the purchase method. This involves the
revaluation at fair value of all identifiable assets
and liabilities, including contingent liabilities of the
subsidiary, at the acquisition date, regardless of
whether or not they were recorded in the financial
statements of the subsidiary prior to acquisition. On
initial recognition, the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary are included in the consolidated balance
sheet at their fair values, which are also used as the
bases for subsequent measurement in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.3 Subsidiaries (continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.

In the Company’s balance sheet, subsidiaries are
carried at cost less any impairment loss. The results of
the subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividends received and receivable at the
balance sheet date.

Minority interest represents the portion of the profit
or loss and net assets of a subsidiary attributable to
equity interests that are not owned by the Group and
are not the Group’s financial liabilities.

Minority interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from the
equity attributable to the equity holders of the
Company. Profit or loss attributable to the minority
interests are presented separately in the consolidated
income statement as an allocation of the Group’s
results. Where losses applicable to the minority
exceeds the minority interests in the subsidiary’s
equity, the excess and further losses applicable to the
minority are allocated against the minority interest to
the extent that the minority has a binding obligation
and is able to make an additional investment to cover
the losses. Otherwise, the losses are charged against
the Group’s interests. If the subsidiary subsequently
reports profits, such profits are allocated to the
minority interest only after the minority’s share of
losses previously absorbed by the Group has been
recovered.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.4 Associates

Associates are those entities over which the Group
is able to exert significant influence, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20%
and 50% of voting rights but which are neither
subsidiaries nor investment in a joint venture. In
consolidated financial statements, investment
in associates is initially recognised at cost and
subsequently accounted for using the equity method.
Under the equity method, the Group’s interest in
the associate is carried at cost and adjusted for the
post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the
associate’s net assets less any identified impairment
loss, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
The consolidated income statement includes the
Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the associate for the year, including any impairment
loss on goodwill relating to the investment in
associate recognised for the year.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate. For this purpose,
the Group’s interest in the associate is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.4 Associates (continued)

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill. The cost of acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed and
equity instruments issued by the Group, plus any costs
directly attributable to the investment.

The goodwill is included within the carrying amount
of the investment and is assessed for impairment
as part of the investment. After the application of
equity method, the Group determines whether it is
necessary to recognise an additional impairment loss
on the Group’s investment in its associates. At each
balance sheet date, the Group determines whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
associate is impaired. If such indications are identified,
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as
being the difference between the recoverable amount
(see note 3.12) of the associate and its carrying
amount.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in the
income statement in the determination of the Group’s
share of the associate’s profit or loss in which the
investment is acquired.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

34

3.5

Associates (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Where the associate uses accounting policies other
than those of the Group for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances, adjustments are
made, where necessary, to conform the associate’s
accounting policies to those of the Group when the
associate’s financial statements are used by the Group
in applying the equity method.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in
associates are stated at cost less any impairment.
The results of associates are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby
two or more parties undertake an economic activity
that is subject to joint control. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control over an
economic activity, and exists only when the strategic
financial and operating decisions relating to the
activity require the unanimous consent of the
venturers.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.5 Joint venture (continued)

In consolidated financial statements, investment in
jointly controlled entities are initially recognised at
cost and subsequently accounted for using the equity
method. Under the equity method, the Group’s
interest in the jointly controlled entities are adjusted
for the post-acquisition changes in the Group's
share of the jointly controlled entity’s net assets
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale). The
consolidated income statement includes the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the jointly controlled entities for the year, including
any impairment loss on goodwill relating to the
investment in jointly controlled entities recognised for
the year.

When the Group’s share of losses in a jointly
controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in
the jointly controlled entity, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the jointly controlled entities. For this purpose,
the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entities
are the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the jointly controlled entities.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.5

3.6

Joint venture (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled
entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Where the jointly controlled
entities use accounting policies other than those of
the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances, adjustments are made to conform the
jointly controlled entities” accounting policies to those
of the Group when the jointly controlled entities’
financial statements are used by the Group in applying
the equity method.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investment in
jointly controlled entities are stated at cost less any
impairment. The result of jointly controlled entities
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of the
individual entity using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. At balance sheet date,
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the balance sheet date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in the income statement.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined and are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into HK$.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HK$
at the closing rates at the balance sheet date. Income
and expenses have been converted into HK$ at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
the average rates over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have been
dealt with separately in the exchange fluctuation
reserve in equity.

Other exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities
are taken to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign
operation is disposed of, such exchange differences
are recognised in the income statement as part of the
gain or loss on disposal.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.7 Revenue recognition

3.8

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, on the following bases:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

from the sale of goods, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms;

interest income, on a time proportion basis
using the effective interest method; and

dividend income, when the shareholder’s right
to receive payment is established.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed as incurred.



Notes to Financial Statements m B1 78R & /2t

For the year ended 30 June 2007
HE-ZTLFERA=ZTHILFE

= EEESTBERBE® 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

39 BB 3.9 Goodwill

T XX E T E Y E A R
MEAZAEZEFK
R ARBHEARRE
ZEEZEERNHE
3.4-°

BEEXRGERABL
N 55 [ 1A 15 e B 7RI A
BE RERKRARZ
R FEES ZBD © %
BA SR ARN A B
UNFRBZEE - FRELEX
AEZABRANKEEE
TRATER  MEXHE
Pl E B B AT
RZRNFERRETE -

2 TR AR R TR E
EEAR - AEESRE
BEeEAEMITSFET
BERAIR (RKIFE3.12) ©

Set out below are the accounting policies on goodwill
arising on acquisition of a subsidiary. Accounting for
goodwill arising on acquisition of investment in an
associate is set out in note 3.4.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a
business combination over the Group’s interest in
the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities. The cost of the
business combination is measured at the aggregate
of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets
given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group, plus any costs
directly attributable to the business combination or
investment.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units and is tested annually for impairment
(see note 3.12).
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= EEESBERBE® 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

39 BEE) 3.9 Goodwill (continued)

AEEREIE AT 35 Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair
EE BEAKAREBER value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
R ERBEBRE KA and contingent liabilities over the cost of a business
Z R E D B Bl i s combination is recognised immediately in profit or
FRRERR © loss.

HEgHE K BARE On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the
BEHE Wk E 1B attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is
EBRIEEENMEEZIE included in the determination of the amount of gain
H&% - or loss on disposal.
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Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use. Expenditure incurred after property,
plant and equipment have been put into operation,
such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged
to the income statement in the period in which it is
incurred. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs, such as repair and
maintenance are charged to the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each asset over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Over the term of the leases
or estimated useful lives of
25 years, whichever is shorter
Commercial buildings Over the term of the leases
or estimated useful lives of

33 years, whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements Over the term of the leases
or estimated useful lives of
4 years, whichever is shorter

Factory buildings

Plant and machinery 10%-33%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 17%
Motor vehicles 25%
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.10 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The assets’ useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset
recognised in the income statement is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future
use.

When the Group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest
which has been classified as an investment property is
accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease.

On initial recognition, investment property is
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment property is stated at fair value. Fair value
is determined by external professional valuers, with
sufficient experience with respect to both the location
and the nature of the investment property. The
carrying amounts recognised in the balance sheet
reflect the prevailing market conditions at the balance
sheet date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the fair
value or the sale of an investment property is included
in the income statement for the period in which they
arise.
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3.12 Impairment of assets
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Goodwill arising on an acquisition of subsidiary,
property, plant and equipment, leasehold land/land
use rights, interests in subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities are subject to impairment
testing.

Goodwill are tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that
they are impaired. All other assets are tested for
impairment whenever there are indications that the
asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessment of time value of money and the
risk specific to the asset.
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= EEERBRBE® 3.

3.12 EERE(E)

3.12 Impairment of assets (continued)
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For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As
a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating
unit level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to those
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from synergies of the related business combination
and represent the lowest level within the Group
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purpose.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating
units, to which goodwill has been allocated, are
credited initially to the carrying amount of goodwill.
Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to
the other assets in the cash-generating unit, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less cost to sell, or value
in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed
in subsequent periods. In respect of other assets,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.
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An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Leases (continued)

(ii)

(iif)

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use the assets held
under operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
assets. Lease incentives received are recognised in the
income statement as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made.

Assets leased out under operating leases as the lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are
measured and presented according to the nature of
the assets. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as
an expense over the lease term on the same basis as
the rental income.

Rental income receivable from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.
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3.14 SREE 3.14 Financial assets
REBGBRMB AR - B The Group's accounting policies for financial assets
B kEREG E S other than investments in subsidiaries, associates and
WEMIIN . EREELE jointly controlled entities are set out below.

SRR T -

EREBED BATER Financial assets are classified into the following
categories:

= NATFHEAER - financial assets at fair value through profit or
L EREE loss

- B FEWRIE - loans and receivables

- AL ESREE —  available-for-sale financial assets

EEEETHEMEED Management determines the classification of its

LR TIBES financial assets at initial recognition depending on the

REERKEZERN R purpose for which the financial assets were acquired

WAFERES  eRE— and where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this

WREBBHEMTEHZD designation at every reporting date.

B
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3.14 SRIEE (&) 3.14 Financial assets (continued)
FEBEeREEERAEE All financial assets are recognised when, and only
B TR A& KMES 27T 4 when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
Ttk AR AEE provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases
BEZeREENRRXSHH of financial assets are recognised on trade date.
R MEFEETHE When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
R RERATEFE measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments
% & W IE AR FEFT A not at fair value through profit or loss, directly
Bam - AIMABEEEGZ attributable transaction costs.

RAMAE -

B IE B EE 2 RSN Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
E2ENE MR EE rights to receive cash flows from the investments
BB R KIS @R & expire or are transferred and substantially all of the
WNE & - ANAR e risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred.
HREMEE - BEmed At each balance sheet date, financial assets are
REERETeMEED reviewed to assess whether there is objective evidence
KRE HREEEER of impairment. If any such evidence exists, impairment
G BE © WA ERDRE loss is determined and recognised based on the
BIBEGFE  REEBEEED classification of the financial asset.

BMEEDBEE MHER

() MNUAFEFABZZ () Financial assets at fair value through profit or
CREE loss
ARAFER ARz Financial assets at fair value through profit or
TREEBRREAR loss include financial assets held for trading
EEBCEREE - and financial assets designated upon initial
VAT #) 2 HE SR B 5 E recognition as at fair value through profit or
BUARFEF ABE= loss.
LERERE o
MEWBEEREEL Financial assets are classified as held for trading
FEZEEMEREH if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in
WHE - P RRE the near term. Derivatives, including separated
BE - BRIFFTET A embedded derivatives are also classified as
(BREBILZASHT held for trading unless they are designated
S TER)EEERARE as effective hedging instruments or financial
Rt T B sk BT & guarantee contracts.

ALK - BRITRIIA

FEEE -
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial assets (continued)

(i)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss (continued)

Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid
contract may be designated as a financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss, except
where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear
that separation of the embedded derivative is

prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated at initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss

if the following criteria are met:

- the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the
assets or recognising gains or losses on

them on a different basis; or
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial assets (continued)

(i)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss (continued)

- the assets are part of a group of financial
assets which are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management strategy and
information about the group of financial
assets is provided internally on that basis
to the key management personnel; or

- the financial asset contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be

separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the
financial assets included in this category
are measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in the income

statement.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial assets (continued)

(ii)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment losses.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate and transaction cost.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial assets (continued)

(iii)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include
non-derivative financial assets that are either
designated to this category or do not qualify
for inclusion in any of the other categories of
financial assets. All financial assets within this
category are subsequently measured at fair
value. Gain or loss arising from a change in the
fair value is recognised directly in equity, except
for impairment losses (see the policy below)
and foreign exchange gains and losses, until
the financial asset is derecognised, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity would be recognised in
the income statement. Interest calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised
in the income statement. Upon disposal, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
equity is transferred to the income statement.

For available-for-sale investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at
each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition.
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3.14 SREE (&) 3.14 Financial assets (continued)
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Impairment of financial assets

At each balance sheet date, financial assets other
than at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed
to determine whether there is any objective evidence
of impairment. If any such evidence exists, the
impairment loss is measured and recognised as
follows:

(i)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the

=2 BREEEEE R difference between the asset’s carrying amount
KB TE(TEIE and the present value of estimated future
REAZRKIEEES cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
B iEemEEZR have not been incurred) discounted at the

R (5 1R
B B2 BIRFIE)

financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at

BRIR 2 IR B A A= initial recognition). The amount of the loss
FATE o BIESER is recognised in the income statement in the
BB IR HAR 2 185 period in which the impairment occurs.
ARAPHERR ©

fWEERBEREES
R - A RRE
A] 2 E U SRR (E
BREREZSHHE -
B [B] 38 1 HERR 2 R
BEER  ETEEH

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to the
extent that it does not result in a carrying

BENE EREERE amount of the financial asset exceeding what
B R ZRE{EBRAN the amortised cost would have been had the
EERREZREEH impairment not been recognised at the date
SHAKAS o BB SN the impairment is reversed. The amount of the
F [0 2% A HA R A2 W e reversal is recognised in the income statement in
FKAPMER © the period in which the reversal occurs.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an available-
for-sale financial asset has been recognised
directly in equity and there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, an amount is removed
from equity and recognised in the income
statement as impairment loss. That amount is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously

recognised in the income statement.

Reversals in respect of investment in equity
instruments classified as available-for-sale are
not recognised in the income statement. The
subsequent increase in fair value is recognised
directly in equity. Impairment losses in respect
of debt securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised. Reversal of impairment losses
in such circumstances are recognised in the

income statement.
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Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) Financial assets carried at cost

BEBESETNE The amount of impairment loss is measured as
B E 2 AR EE (R the difference between the carrying amount
HemEE2EEHHA of the financial asset and the present value
BIRSMILIA R TS of estimated future cash flows discounted at
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3.15

3.16

financial asset. Such impairment losses are not
reversed in subsequent periods.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average basis and, in the case of work
in progress and finished goods, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is based on the
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

Accounting for income taxes
Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.
Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise

those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period,

BEEXREBRBERRE that are unpaid at the balance sheet date. They are
(BERBEERHAZN) calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws
THIR R F N FE R 5 v Al applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate,

2B Y R R 2 E A
REBUEFTE - RBHIA

based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes
to current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as

BESBBEZEDAIER a component of income tax expense in the income
W RPMEHHAY 2 — statement.
#5 -



Notes to Financial Statements m B1 %%

For the year ended 30 June 2007
HE-_ZTHEA=THILEFE

=+

Ea

Annual Report 2007 £ =§

5 B

EEFBERBE )

3.16 Fi8HiEsT (&)

EXEFBEDRZNEERE
ENMBERYBHRE 2K
HEEESERZHELY
BERNBEEGE - &
EFERE—RAPTBE
RV RAER - A
EEAAHBAZERT G
A AT 4 AT 008 B =R
ABAZHBEEE MK
RZHBEEREA - AIH
PRE R HRE R 25 - 7
R BIEE R R E AR
Rz RIBR R ERIET
MIAEE

R BRI HER(XHE
HERINRBP 2 BEERR
ELXEREEZEHER
MA ST ESETE ]
THAELHBEERA

& o

BELERARBRRKER
A BERARRAERT]
Z BT BI BUZ MR T B
RIEZREM T IAER -
7 8% [ A £ I 5 () 2 B B
HERERTAAGERAR
R E 2 B i 1 = 2R
BRON

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.16 Accounting for income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences at the balance sheet date
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and their respective tax
bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, tax losses available to be carried forward
as well as other unused tax credits, to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or
loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.16

3.17

Accounting for income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they
are enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in the income statement, or in equity
if they relate to items that are charged or credited
directly to equity.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the
purpose of cash flow statement presentation, cash
and cash equivalents include bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.18

3.19

Share capital and share premium

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital
is determined using the nominal value of shares that
have been issued.

Share premium includes any premiums received
on the issue of share capital. Any transaction costs
associated with the issuing of shares are deducted
from share premium (net of any related income tax
benefit) to the extent they are incremental costs
directly attributable to the equity transaction.

Employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ relevant income
and are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. The Group'’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.



Notes to Financial Statements m B1 783 & [

For the year ended 30 June 2007
HE_ZTHFERA=THILFE

= EEESTBERBE® 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.19 EERA (&) 3.19 Employee benefits (continued)
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Pension scheme (continued)

Prior to the MPF Scheme becoming effective, the
Group operated a defined contribution retirement
benefits scheme (the “Prior Scheme”) for those
employees who were eligible to participate in this
scheme. The Prior Scheme operated in a similar way to
the MPF Scheme, except that when an employee left
the Prior Scheme before his/her interest in the Group’s
employer contributions vested fully, the ongoing
contributions payable by the Group were reduced
by the relevant amount of the forfeited employer’s
contributions.

The employees of the subsidiaries which operate in
the People’s Republic of China except Hong Kong and
Macau (“Mainland China”) are required to participate
in a retirement benefits scheme (the “RB Scheme”)
operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the RB Scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the RB Scheme is to pay the ongoing
required contributions under the RB Scheme.
Contributions under the RB Scheme are charged to
the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the RB Scheme.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include bank loans and
overdrafts, trade and other payables, balances with
associates, jointly controlled entities and a related
party, loans from minority shareholders and derivative
financial instruments. They are included in balance
sheet line items as “Trade payables”, “Derivative
financial instruments”, “Bank loans and overdrafts,
secured”, “Due to associates”, “Due to a related
party”, “Due to jointly controlled entities”, “Loans
from minority shareholders” and “Other payables and
accruals”.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual agreements of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised
as an expense in the income statement.

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount
is recognised in the income statement.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Financial liabilities (continued)

(@)

(b)

©

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at
their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments under
liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and measured at fair value subsequent to
initial recognition with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement.
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3.21 B IRBEBERIARE 3.21 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent
B assets
MAEEEBEZEHE Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
ifﬁﬁxﬁ@‘i?&?@ 1 present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of

A B 78 B FA A7 Fl) 2= BA a past event and it is probable that a future outflow

J@TT 5 (£ 8% 1F 1 Al S il of resources will be required to settle the obligation
FT - BIRERE A o ME 8 and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
REEBEAXN - AliLEH value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
BITEBEREMBRAY Z present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
WERE - obligation.
FrERERNE—#EBK All provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date
SN URBERZ and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

RAEfERT ©

N7 ﬁi&—f“h?\@%ﬁl Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
OBERZRL - SRee benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
Gt E\'JEEWE be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
BeRREANREBE K as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
FE 4B F 2507 2 7] gE M outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
RIE - EETHERR obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
o 2R — 1B 3k 2% (& 3 K B by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
& B 5 fl BV 1B 50 I Al e EE uncertain future events not wholly within the control
E2E - TIRERA of the Group are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
@ & BRIEK /;@5 Flz i B unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
ARE MR is remote.

IARBERNBEESIEE Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course
2B OERRINEEE R of the allocation of purchase price to the assets
BEZARRER ZZF and liabilities acquired in a business combination.
BEMXREE A BRZA They are initially measured at fair value at the date
FEFE - HER LA of acquisition and subsequently measured at the
A& L BB R R higher of the amount that would be recognised in
X wRe B ERNR a comparable provision as described above and the
STEE(VBERERE) 2 amount initially recognised less any accumulated
BRETE ° amortisation, if appropriate.
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3.22 BIHIEREYN

3.22 Financial guarantee contracts
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A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts in the scope of
HKAS 39 are accounted for as financial liabilities. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially at
its fair value plus transactions costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial
guarantee contract, except when such contract
is recognised at fair value through profit or loss.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contract at higher of: (i) the
amount determined in accordance with HKAS 37
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with HKAS 18 “Revenue”.
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3.23 RE 3.23 Dividends
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Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
capital and reserves section of the balance sheet, until
they have been approved by the shareholders in a
general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.24 Segment reporting

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting, the Group has determined that business
segments be presented as the primary reporting
format and geographical segments as the secondary
reporting format.

In respect of business segment reporting, unallocated
costs include corporate expenses and other expenses
that cannot be allocated on a reasonable basis to the
reporting segments. Segment assets consist primarily
leasehold land/land use rights, investment properties,
property, plant and equipment, inventories,
receivables and operating cash. Segment liabilities
comprise operating liabilities and exclude items such
as taxation and certain corporate borrowings.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property,
plant and equipment, including additions resulting
from acquisitions through purchases of subsidiaries.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, revenue
is based on the country in which the customer is
located and total assets and capital expenditure are
where the assets are located.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.25 Related parties

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if:

(iii)

(iv)

directly, or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, the Group:

- controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the entity;

- has an interest in the entity that gives it
significant influence over the entity;

- has joint control over the entity;

the party is an associate of the Group;

the party is a joint venture in which the Group is
a venturer;

the party is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family or any
individual referred to in (i) or (iv);
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.25 Related parties (continued)

(vi)  the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (iv) or (v); or

(vii) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of the Group, or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Fair value of investment properties

The investment properties of the Group were stated at
fair value in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note 3.11. The fair value of the investment properties
are determined by an independent professional valuer,
Chung, Chan & Associates, and the fair value of investment
properties are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.
Such valuations were based on certain assumptions, which
are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ from
the actual results.

In making the judgement, reasonable consideration has
been given to the underlying assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the balance sheet
date. These estimates are regularly compared to actual
market data and actual transactions in the market.
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AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Estimation of impairment losses of available-for-sale
financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or
prolonged decline in fair value below cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment. Judgement is required
when determining whether a decline in fair value has been
significant and/or prolonged. In making this judgement, the
historical data on market volatility as well as the price of
the specific investment are taken into account. The Group
also takes into account other factors, such as industry and
sector performance and financial information regarding the
issuer/investee.

Provision for impairment of receivables

The policy for the provision for impairment of receivables of
the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability and
aging analysis of accounts and on management’s judgment.
A considerable amount of judgment is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness, the collateral security and the past
collection history of each client. If the financial conditions
of client of the Group, on whose account provision for
impairment has been made, were improved and no
impairment of their ability to make payments were noted,
reversal of provision for impairment may be required.

Estimate of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subjected to taxation in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
amount of the provision for taxation and the timing of
payment of the related taxation. Where the final tax
outcome is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the periods in which such
determination are made.
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WEZER  ARBEFARY
RARA AR E 2 BB IE
BLMNEATZE -

FERE

REERERFHEFEZEES
ﬁ% AEBANETFE 2Rk
AT HFE 2 REERELE
ARBHEELR - REEEH
BERAETREHE - FRE
TFE A3 FE < FRIE1L - B
A RRIMEE -

AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Estimate of current tax and deferred tax (continued)

During the year and up to the date of these financial
statements, the Inland Revenue Department (“IRD") of
Hong Kong is in the process of reviewing the tax affairs
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. After taking into
account the development of the IRD’s review to date,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
Group's tax provision is fairly presented. As at 30 June
2007, in relation to the aforementioned IRD’s review, the
Group has purchased a tax reserve certificate amounting to
approximately HK$11.18 million.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Company and
a subsidiary were selected for a field audit by the IRD. The
field audit is at a preliminary stage and after taking into
account the development of the IRD’s field audit to date,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that there
should not be any material impact on the Company’s and
the Group's tax positions.

Provision for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group would
evaluate aging analysis of inventories and compare the
carrying value of inventories to their respective net realisable
value. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in determining such allowance. If conditions which have
impact on the net realisable value of inventories deteriorate,
additional allowances may be required.

[v¥]
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks which
results from both its operating and investing activities. The
Group does not have written risk management policies
and guidelines. However, the board of directors meets
periodically to analyse and formulate strategies to manage
the Group’s exposure to market risks, including changes
in interest rates and currency exchange rates. Generally,
the Group utilises conservative strategies on its risk
management. The Group’s exposure to market risk is kept to
minimum. The Group has not used any derivatives or other
instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not issue
derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

The Group does not actively engage in the trading of
financial assets for speculative purposes nor does it write
options. The most significant financial risks to which the
Group is exposed to are described below.

(i) Foreign currency risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss due to adverse
movements in foreign exchange rate relating to
receivables from foreign debtors and foreign currency
deposits with banks. To mitigate the foreign currency
risk, the management work closely to manage and
monitor the foreign exchange exposure arising from
transactions involving foreign currencies.
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I sEREEBEER 5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

BE @) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(i) FEERR (i) Credit risk
—REAT eREEE Generally, the maximum credit risk exposure of
ez AEERR - Th% financial assets is the carrying amount of the financial
HeMEENEEAEBR assets as shown on the face of the balance sheet
25 2 BREE (S B 75 3R (or in the detailed analysis provided in the notes to
LR D) o EUt the financial statements). Credit risk, therefore, is
EEANEESREER only disclosed in circumstances where the maximum
FHeRmEELREER potential loss differs significantly from the financial
E TR - T HREEER asset’s carrying amount.
o o
REBZE S KEMER The Group’s trade and other receivables are actively
MY ZEREEE « LAk monitored to avoid significant concentrations of credit
REAEH 2 EERE risk.

(i) FEREBRFAZE (iii) Cash flow and interest rate risk
BenE kxRS Cash flow and interest rate risks are managed by
PTES BT B (HanH =g means of derivative financial instruments, such as
HR)EIR, DABREEEF interest rate swaps, where necessary, to ensure short-
Hmsh Mt KEIEEEZ to-medium term liquidity. The Group's exposure
MERZ R BB R to changes in interest rates is mainly attributable
HZ 8 fETTEM LAEE) to its bank borrowings with floating interest rates.
MEREESAEEAERR Borrowings at variable rates expose the Group to cash
BimE A EERE o flow interest rate risk.

(iv) AFE (iv) Fair value
rEEemEERBETD The fair value of the Group's current financial assets
BIRFsk B EASIHEE - E A and liabilities are not materially different from their
FEERAEBETESAE carrying amounts because of the immediate or short
2o IEmEB A FESEWK term maturity. The fair values of non-current liabilities
H2 R FEWAREE - and receivables were not disclosed because their
HIFEESEAFETES carrying value is not materially different from their fair
AER o value.
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5.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(iv) Fair value (continued)

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point
in time and based on relevant market information
and information about the financial instrument.
These estimates are subjective in nature and involve
uncertainties and matters of significant judgement
and therefore cannot be determined with precision.
Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the
estimates.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two segment
formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by
business segment; and (i) on a secondary segment reporting
basis, by geographical segment.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately, according to the nature of their
operations and the products and services they provide. Each
of the Group’s business segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers products and services which are
subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
other business segments. Summary details of the business
segments are as follows:

(@)  Design, manufacturing, marketing and trading of fine
jewellery and diamonds;

(b)  property investment; and

(¢) investment.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments,
revenues are attributed to the segments based on the

location of the customers and assets are attributed to the
segments based on the location of the assets.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a)

Business segment
The following tables present revenue, profit and

certain asset, liability and expenditure information for
the Group’s business segments.

Rt » 4 RREE

HEBHRER
Design, manufacturing,
NERE marketing and trading of e e
Property investment  jewellery and diamonds Investment Consolidated
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
FEr AT FEr AT FEr AT TEn AT
HKS$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
DB : Seqment revenue:
HET/ i Sales tofrevenue from
BIFAT external parties 31,883 31,082 1594786  1,675455 5511 5133 1,632,180 1,711,670
e Segment restlts 241,425% 35435* 34,558 46,658 2,146 6,377 278,129 88,470
AR Unallocated expenses (2463 (2003
ey Profit from operations 275,666 86,407
BERA Finance costs (17,636)  (15,610)
EEBENFEE  Share of results of assodiates - - (550) 156 - - (550) 156
AR Share of resuls of jointly
ERzE controlled entities 2314 426 - - - - 2314 426

BREERRIRR Profit before income tax
FiEHRS Income tax expense

Emat] Profit for the year

@ REMEZAFEEH
216,765,000/ (=TT /1 F:
14,300,000 7o) E 1A 2 &6 %
BEBHIBZ [MEREI RS

%

259,794 n3n
(52,898) (16,324)

206,89 55,055

The changes in fair value of investment properties of
HK$216,765,000 (2006: HK$14,300,000) were included in
the segment results of the business segment of “Property
investment”.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a) EBII(E) (a) Business segment (continued)
Fir B EEREE
KEEHRER
Design, manufacturing,
NERE marketing and trading of RE& "a
Property investment jewellery and diamonds Investment Consolidated
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
FEr AT FEr AT FA1 AT FE1 AT
HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
DHEE Segment assets 778,281 463,671 640,983 632,637 41,851 34188 1461121  1,1304%
REERTZES  Interests in associates - - 4,029 4,455 - = 4,029 4,455
REREHEE  Interestsin jointly

iR controlled entities 96,969 94,538 - - - - 96,969 9,538
APRERE Unallocated assets 12092 1369
BESR Total assets 1,683,031 1,365,781
HERE Segment liabiltes 152,059 19610 250733 240,551 304 284 403006 260445
HIEZRET > Bankloans and overdrafts,

EER secured 3719 272,683
AOERR Unallocated iabiltes 120,966 87,744
BE4%E Totalliabiltes 882841 62087
At HER : Other segment information:
neE Depreciation 12 9 10,156 9,671 56 - 10324 9,766
et/ ti Amortisation on leasehold

{REEs landand use rights - - 239 239 - - 29 239
FREFX Non-cash expenses - - 5,827 34,333 11,827 1,194 17,654 35,50
B Capital expenditure 78,190 671 5,242 8994 357 - 83,789 9,665
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N> TERPER ) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(b) HEDE (b) Geographical segment
TREAEE R D H The following table presents revenue, results and
ZWA - EERETEE certain asset and expenditure information for the
EEFAS B AR o Group’s geographical segments.
EN B &k AthE Ga
North America Europe Hong Kong Other areas Consolidated

007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
fEr TEr TEr Tér TEr Tér TEr TEAT TEr TEn
HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

DEWA: Seqment revenue:
HET /W Salestolrevenue from

ASNRAL external parties 780,589 760,293 611,870 629,679 222,039 273779 17,682 47919 1,632,180 1,711,670
EMAEER  Other segment information:
PHEE Segment assets 143513 125335 126,665 93917 1,062,768 883378 331,527 243340 1,664,473 1,345,970
AAEEAE  Unallocated assets 18558 19,811
HEAR Total assets 1,683,031 1,365,781
ERET Capital expenditure - - 92 378 19904 3066 3793 6221 83789 9,665
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AEBUEEZ AT :

REVENUE

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents

the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for

returns and trade discounts, gross rental income, interest
income and dividend income from investments.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

2007 2006
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$°000
HESm Sale of goods 1,594,786 1,676,739
HEUWAERE Gross rental income 31,883 31,082
FBUA Interest income 4,404 3,262
TEZREWA Dividend income from investments 1,107 587
1,632,180 1,711,670
RRE R A 8. FINANCE COSTS
AREE
Group
2007 2006
FET FAET
HK$000 HK$°000
ERAFANBHEEZ Interest expense on bank loans and
RITERREZ 2 overdrafts wholly repayable
B within five years 2,715 2,540
AR T FIRERZIRIT Interest expense on bank loans repayable
B A B over five years 14,921 13,070
17,636 15,610
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PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

2007 2006
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
A& BRI AR I The Group’s profit before income tax
J(GIA)ATIEE 250 is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
BLEFERAK Cost of inventories sold 1,387,891 1,481,893
REMERSWATE Gross rental income from investment properties (31,883) (31,082)
B IREMELET L Less: Outgoings in respect of investment properties 1,986 1,866
BRENF ZHSUAFE Net rental income from investment properties (29,897) (29,216)
Wi - BEREETE Depreciation of property, plant and
(Biat 1) equipment (note 16) 10,324 9,766
FE 430 K 4t fF A 5 Amortisation of leasehold land and
(HaF1+) land use rights (note 17) 239 239
BECEHELR Minimum lease payments under
EF 2 EREMNH operating leases on land and buildings 6,683 4187
Gl g Auditors' remuneration 782 812
FERE Provision against inventories* 2,497 2,046
fTESRIT AN TEER Fair value losses/(gains) on derivative
/(W) financial instruments
—RPEEAY — forward currency contracts (312) 312
—FIEEHEH — interest rate swap contracts 522 (561)
WE - BE MR R ERE Provision for impairment of property, plant
(Bt 1) * and equipment (note 16)** 2,629 -
Nl ey Net foreign exchange gains (5,690) (1,570)
RN Bad debts recovery - (17,728)
HE—RRBARNE Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
(HiE=11) (note 39) - (13,036)
il ANGI RS e Share of income tax expense of associates 28 66
N ESREERERSE Impairment loss on available-for-sale
financial assets 146 1,194
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9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX (continued)

2007 2006

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

RHAEU A (B E) /Bt (Write back)/Provision for long term receivables (363) 22,341
R—REE A RIR A8 Provision for impairment on the net

ZRERE investments in an associate - 3,898
FE—FEE & N AlIR Provision for impairment on an amount

BERE due from an associate = 1,599
[y — S L Rl | B Be 20a Provision for impairment on an amount

SEBE (H=+—) due from a jointly controlled entity (note 21) 11,670 -
FEREXBREE Provision for legal and professional fee - 5,023
HEME - BE k&2 (Gain)/Loss on disposal of property,

() /4 plant and equipment (104) 29
AR 8 Bad debts written off 81 873
il el AN 6| Amount due from an associate written off 620 2,507
2 SRENEIE (BT /BfE (Write back)/Provision for trade receivables (5,088) 2,131
Hib IR Provision for other receivables - 534
e RERFFEBRBEIIALGE W @ The provision against inventories for the year was included

Tl [HERAI R - in “cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated income
statement.

o % BERERERBERE **  The provision for impairment of property, plant and equipment

BIAGREWEmR 2 [ was included in “Other operating expenses” on the face of the

BERIA-

consolidated income statement.
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+ - IEHEHEX 10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
BAENGHIIARNEERE B Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
B Z (E AT R Bl m AR 71 & 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
17.5% (ZFZRF : 17.5%) 71 arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits
F o Bt [2 ERTE A 2 B IE assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the applicable
RS B 2E 2 (B R B A R IR rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
RrE A2 BiERTE - WREZE operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and
AVAHE 2 RITED - RERIE practices in respect thereof.

BIfEL -
Group
2007 2006
FET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BNER - Current tax
B Hong Kong 8,982 14,272
A FE (RBEERE), (Over)/Under provision in prior years
BETE (137) 1,228
FEEFRIB (At =+=) Deferred tax (note 33) 44,053 824
AREFE T IB A% Total tax charge for the year 52,898 16,324
BERAREAE MRS EE Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit
Fhs A 2 $8R - at applicable tax rates:
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

2007 2006
FiET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BRETSH A& ) Profit before income tax 259,794 71,379
B AT E MR IR EE Tax on profit before taxation, calculated at the
% 17.5% statutory rate of 17.5%
(Z2ZRF : 17.5%) (2006: 17.5%) 45,464 12,491
EAH‘rﬁl RS E I Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
RAZ PEREZE operating in other jurisdictions (759) 254
ﬁé’EJE Ba N TG 7 BTS2 Tax effect of share of results of associates 96 39
FE(E EREHI B XS Tax effect of share of results of a
I E jointly controlled entities (405) (75)
AR 2 B fs s & Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 5,093 5,795
EIBRIINA 2 T 2 Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (2,395) (5,562)
SEEBREFERBER Tax effect of prior year's tax losses
Zﬁ)ﬁ“‘af 2 utilised this year (497) (772)
RERREREZ TG E  Tax effect of temporary differences
not recognised 3,679 (88)
RERTEER TG E  Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 2,759 3,014
ARFE (BREEE) (Over)/Under provision in prior years
BETE (137) 1,228
REEHBESH Tax charge for the year 52,898 16,324

+— - AXNAEFZHFEEFA 11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

J& Ak im F

ZIS jﬁg\ %‘ﬁkrg{ﬁ;ﬂ'm/ﬁn
#)113,986,000/8 7T ( Z =&~
£ : 50,537,000/ 7)) F - AR
R EREFEREZHF A
21,399,000/%75(—3 3/\£|E'

69,398,00077T) ©

statements of the Company.

Of the consolidated profit attributable to the equity
holders of the Company of HK$113,986,000 (2006:
HK$50,537,000), a profit of HK$21,399,000 (2006:
HK$69,398,000) has been dealt with in the financial
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+= - BB 12. DIVIDENDS
2007 2006
FAET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
HE — SREREAR0.0108 T Interim — HK$0.010 (2006: HK$0.010) per
(ZZFZENF :0.010/87T) ordinary share 2,798 2,798
BURARH— SAL@A%0.0207%7C  Proposed final - HK$0.020 (2006: HK$0.030)
(ZZZ"F : 0.030/87T) per ordinary share 5,596 8,394
8,394 11,192
RNEEHIR AR AR S ERFAAT] The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
BRERERITZRRBEREG approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
B - annual general meeting.
+=- BREF 13. EARNINGS PER SHARE
AR B AR B F TR B AR R A The calculations of basic earnings per share is based on the
Ewm A ARG ARFEEHT net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for
113,986,000 8 70 (ZZTZ /N4 ¢ the year of HK$113,986,000 (2006: HK$50,537,000), and
50,537,000 7T ) & FE A E 1T 279,800,031 ordinary shares in issue during the year.
@Ak 279,800,031 IRETHE o
RBE_ZZLFR-ZFEX No diluted earnings per share amounts are shown as the
NA=THIEFE ARG E Company has no potential ordinary shares for the years
BEEEL - BN ended 30 June 2007 and 2006.
SERF] o
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- EERFAEAX(E 14. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
EEEME — Mt (INCLUDING DIRECTORS'
+35) EMOLUMENTS - NOTE 15)
2007 2006
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERE® Wages and salaries 98,750 77,873
REBAFR Unutilised annual leave - 194
BIRE A —F8EHFETE] Pension costs — defined contribution plans 5,339 3,412
T BRI R Less: Forfeited contributions (16) (84)
104,073 81,395

&iE LR RN BB R BRI
—BEATEEEZEEHEM

B 15. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies

™ Ordinance is as follows:
REE
Group
2007 2006
FET FET
HK$000 HK$°000
e Fees:
B IEHITES Independent non-executive directors 200 200
HAubITEEE B - Other executive directors’ emoluments:
e 2 REYRR Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 5,276 4,712
TE4T Bonus 2,374 1,982
RORET B R Retirement scheme contributions 237 211
7,887 6,905
8,087 7,105
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+h - EEMERSRE 15. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
BABZEHM =) AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

SR EXFERBEESN - REEFE
NBERITES - FRTEFK
B IFATE S WEUTAEE -
HAfERNE -

Save as disclosed above, none of the executive, non-
executive or independent non-executive directors received
any fees or other reimbursements or emoluments for both
years.

HE-TTLFR-_TEAEA
A=+BELLEE  BEESIHZ

The emoluments of each director, on a named basis, for the

BEESMEHIINT

years ended 30 June 2007 and 2006 are set out below:

2007
Ee RIK
we REWAZE T4 SRR Mt
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind Bonus contributions Total
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000
HITES Executive directors:
BREEE Chan Sing Chuk, Charles - 3,500 710 158 4,368
B/ Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley - 960 1,118 43 2,121
R Chan Wai Kei, Vicki - 408 278 18 704
BRIZSL (Bf5ta)  Chan WaiLap, Victor (note a) - 408 268 18 694
FHTES Non-executive director:
KEE Chu Wai Kok 50 - - - 50
BUFHTEE:  Independent non-executive
directors:
289 Leung Hai Ming, Raymond 50 - - - 50
S Wong Kai Cheong 50 = = = 50
FER Yu Shiu Tin, Paul 50 - - - 50
“ETHEEG Total 2007 200 5,276 2,374 237 8,087

~
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ThE - EEMERSRE 15. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
HEABZHMN @ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
2006
e 28 RIK
we REDIR TEAT e 5t
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind Bonus  contributions Total
FET FHET FET FET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BTES: Executive directors:
REE Chan Sing Chuk, Charles - 3,500 790 156 4,446
B\ Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley = 840 998 38 1,876
BREH Chan Wai Kei, Vicki - 372 194 17 583
FBTES Non-executive director:
KEE Chu Wai Kok 50 - - - 50
BUFEHTES:  Independent non-executive
directors:
28R Leung Hai Ming, Raymond 50 - = = 50
TH#E Wong Kai Cheong 50 - - - 50
RER Yu Shiu Tin, Paul 50 - - - 50
NS Total 2006 200 4,712 1,982 211 7,105

FAMBEEHEXLRERES
MBS 2 228k -

FR - AEEYEAEEME
MBS ER/ AR AR EE
5 2 S2E) S BB AR 18

Hiat - Note:

@ BEIR-FEAE+A=T+ @
AEEE -

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to

the directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

Chan Wai Lap, Victor was appointed on 20 October 2006.
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+H EEMEESHRE  15. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
BABEZFEM 2 AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
AfugEHFAL Five highest paid individuals
FARMUEERHATBREMRA The five highest paid individuals during the year included
(ZZZRF - MB)ES - £ two (2006: two) directors, details of whose emoluments are
SHBEHN EX - #BRT=8(= set out above. Details of the emoluments of the remaining
ETRFZR)UFES & three (2006: three) non-director, highest paid individuals are
BEFATZHESFFIBRT as follows:
AEE
Group
2007 2006
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
e EBREYAN = Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 2,842 2,538
RIRETEIHE5R Retirement scheme contributions 55 49
TEAT Bonus 390 260
3,287 2,847
FEEzHREFALTMHEZE The number of non-director, highest paid individuals whose
BT T HIEHE 2 ABIRT : emoluments fell within the following bands is as follows:
AE#E
Number of individuals
2007 2006
£ % 1,000,000 7T Nil-HK$ 1,000,000 2 2
1,000,001 % T2 1,500,000 HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1 1
3 3
FN - AEEWER = &= During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
AT ZAEA S ER AR the three highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
IR &£ B R 2 4% B ok Bt Bk 4 or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of
& office.
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+75 > Y% - BB R 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

rEE Group
B RE
RERAE
BERHAE Furniture,
NERE HE fixtures,
Buildings and K#%E  equipment
leasehold Plant and and motor fag
improvements machinery vehicles Total

TAT TAT TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R_EERENA=TH At 30 June 2005
A Cost 61,235 52,907 37,997 152,139
SMERRE Accumulated depreciation and

impairment (30,181) (39,859) (28,237) (98,277)
REFE Net book amount 31,054 13,048 9,760 53,862

BE_ZZFANA=THIFE Year ended 30 June 2006

HER A FE Opening net book amount 31,054 13,048 9,760 53,862
KB Additions 2,035 2,880 4,750 9,665
HE Disposals = = (39) (39)
e Depreciation (3,060) (3,034) (3,672) (9,766)
B 5 3% Exchange realignment 619 185 154 958
HREREFE Closing net book amount 30,648 13,079 10,953 54,680
RZEZREAA=ZTH At 30 June 2006
5% Cost 64,006 56,134 42,651 162,791
EFMERRE Accumulated depreciation and

impairment (33,3598) (43,055) (31,698) (108,111)
REEE Net book amount 30,648 13,079 10,953 54,680
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TR - WEBBERR 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(%) (continued)
REE Group
B £8.
FERAE
BFREE Furniture,
MEEE BE fixtures,
Buildings and Rz equipment
leasehold Plant and and motor ag
improvements machinery vehicles Total

TR TAT TAT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(Z_ZF+LFENA=THIEEE Year ended 30 June 2007

HREFE Opening net book amount 30,648 13,079 10,953 54,680
INE Additions 2,086 1,247 2,266 5,599
HeE Disposals (145) (10) (173) (328)
e Depreciation (3,064) (3,235) (4,025) (10,324)
BE Impairment (1,003) (1,098) (528) (2,629)
B 3% Exchange realignment 822 667 522 2,011
AREEEE Closing net book amount 29,344 10,650 9,015 49,009
RZZZLERA=TH At 30 June 2007
B AR Cost 67,468 58,524 45,557 171,549
S ERAE Accumulated depreciation and

impairment (38,124) (47,874) (36,542) (122,540)
BREEE Net book amount 29,344 10,650 9,015 49,009
RZZBZEELFASA=1TH && At 30 June 2007, the Group’s certain buildings with a
BEREFEA)2,118,00078 T(= net book value of approximately HK$2,118,000 (2006:
TN 1 467,000/870) 2 & T HK$467,000) were pledged to secure general banking
BRI ERE T AEE 2 facilities granted to the Group (note 32).

—RBITEEFE=1T2) -
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N~

+t *ﬂg Tt fE 17. LEASEHOLD LAND/LAND USE RIGHTS
H

rEE
Group
2007 2006
FET T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHRREFE Opening net carrying amount 9,777 10,016
FREEHE Amortisation charge for the year (239) (239)
FRIEEFE Closing net carrying amount 9,538 9,777
RNE BRI E T4 & 30 5 The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights
ZHERATRMCERERE - & represent prepaid operating lease payments and their net
REFESTHT : book value are analysed as follows:
2007 2006
FET TFHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
REBFA : In Hong Kong held on:
+Z= R+ Fr EfFE R Medium-term lease of between 10 to 50 years 3,878 3,975
RBEBLUINEE Outside Hong Kong, held on:
F - LA R EAFE B Long-term lease of over 50 years 256 264
TER G A Medium-term lease of between 10 to 50 years 5,404 5,538
9,538 9,777
R-ZBZL+FA=1+H' ' &% At 30 June 2007, the Group’s certain leasehold land/land
E AR FEA 7,013,000 (= use rights with the carrying amount of HK$7,013,000
TE/NEFE ¢ 5,676,000/87T) 25 (2006: HK$5,676,000) were pledged to secure general
TFHAE T4+ s FA e 1 IR banking facilities granted to the Group (note 32).
NERETASE 2 —RIRITE
B(WaE=1+=) -
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+)\ > BEYE 18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

AEENGEHETAFHE - A
RRESHEAEEBNAEY
FEs - HRARFHEEIIRKR
EMERBEAR -

IABEBER ZEREZ S
agny

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and are classified
and accounted for as investment properties.

Changes to the carrying amounts presented in the balance
sheet can be summarised as follows:

REH

Group
2007 2006
FET FET
HK$000 HK$’000
RtA—RZEEE Carrying amount as at 1 July 467,800 605,500
=T Additions 91,390 -
HE—fEKTB A A Disposals of a subsidiary = (152,000)
NHEALESEZFRZE  Net gain from fair value adjustments 216,765 14,300
RARA=1THZEREE Carrying amount as at 30 June 775,955 467,800

AEFZREMEUNESE A
AR EATHARR B o

AEBMZEEMER-_ZZLF
NAZ T BARBI A ERE
BTRAAMSGAIEE AigEE
EHHEAR775,955,0005% T (=
T4 467,800,000 7T) ©
AEFGEMEE 2 AFERE
216,765,000 T (Z=Z /1 4F ¢
14,300,0008 70 ) AR FE 2
AR -

R-ZZZTLFA=1H &&E
E(B(E 775,955,000 T 2% &
Y% (ZZZ 754 © 467,800,000
BIC)WHEA UERRETAE
EEZ—MRETEE(HE
=+=)-

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Hong
Kong and are held under medium term leases.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 30
June 2007 by Chung, Chan & Associates, an independent
firm of chartered surveyors, at HK$775,955,000 (2006:
HK$467,800,000) on an open market existing use basis. A
fair value adjustment on revaluation of HK$216,765,000
(2006: HK$14,300,000) arising therefrom was credited to
the consolidated income statement for the year.

At 30 June 2007, the Group's investment properties with a
value of HK$775,955,000 (2006: HK$467,800,000) were
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group (note 32).

w
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T KRB ARZ#ER 19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
KAF
Company

2007 2006

FET FAET

HK$°000 HK$°000

FEETRRD - AR Unlisted shares, at cost 95,261 95,261
HEEHE Deemed capital contribution 173,710 173,710
BB Provision for impairment (25,037) (23,964)
243,934 245,007

FEUR BB N Al B Due from subsidiaries 415,095 400,529

A NGIE e Provision against amounts due from

2R subsidiaries (102,000) (102,000)
313,095 298,529

557,029 543,536

FEW— B A FIFIE Due from a subsidiary 52,300 54,494

EHMBRAR 2 &R TIERA
BB EREEB R KRR
+—@ERARNEE  MEBEMEEIE
EEZER—EKHB AR
52,300,000/ L ( ZEZ/RF ¢

54,494,000 7T) °

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and not repayable within the next twelve months from
the balance sheet date, except for an amount due from

I8 a subsidiary of HK$52,300,000 (2006: HK$54,494,000)

which is repayable on demand.
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R-PTLEXA=1H 2

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2007

MEARZFIEMT are as follows:
GaLAe BRI/
BRREEY BRTRAEE RAREL
Place of Nominal value EREDL
incorporation/ of paid-up Percentage of
£4 registration registered/issued equity attributable FTEEH
Name and operations share capital to the Company Principal activities
B 4
Direct  Indirect
ERENZERERAT &E 2BREE 108 BRR 100 - EREHRITE
Amco Jewelry Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares Diamond trading and
of HK$10 each polishing
Continental Investment &E 100,000 REE 1 87T Lk 100 = RAER
Company Limited Hong Kong 100,000 ordinary shares Investment holding
of HK$1 each
{ENIRE A HRARAR £ 10,000,000 k(8 17872 BBk 100 - EAMRE RIS
Continental Jewellery (Mfg.) Hong Kong 10,000,000 ordinary shares Jewellery manufacturing
Limited of HK$1 each and wholesaling
XA ENHAERAA &b 117,000,000 R (E0.178 702 EEAX 100 - BABIRE
Optik Technologies Limited Hong Kong 117,000,000 ordinary shares Information technology
of HK$0.1 each servicing
CJ. (UK) Limited* G 1,000 RE{E 1 £ LRR - 100 KEAMILE
United Kingdom 1,000 ordinary shares Jewellery wholesaling
of GBP1 each
EEHREARLA &R 500,000 R E(E 17872 LRk 100 - RERK
Diamond Creation Limited Hong Kong 500,000 ordinary shares Investment holding
of HK$1 each
DCGS Management Service B 10,000,000 AR (E 1 7T Eifk - 100 RERR/REERRS
Limited Hong Kong 10,000,000 ordinary shares Investment holding/
of HK$1 each providing management
services
EBAMERR AR &r 2RAE BT ERR - 100 ES
Continental Property Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares Property investment
Holdings Limited of HK$1 each
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Th - KRB LR Z#Em e 19.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES continued)

ML,/ BARFR/
BRREEhE BRTRAEE ARAEL
Place of Nominal value ExEat
incorporation/ of paid-up Percentage of
£4: registration registered/issued equity attributable FTEER
Name and operations share capital to the Company Principal activities
B %
Direct  Indirect
BNRHRENSRHERRAR B 8,667,659 7T - 60 TRE B S
Guangzhou Free Trade Zone Mainland China Paid up capital Jewellery manufacturing
Continental Jewellery Co. Ltd.* of HK$8,667,659
HRBFERAA Bk 100,000 REE 1 BT LR - 100 EREHRIE
Jestar Trading Limited Hong Kong 100,000 ordinary shares Diamond trading and
of HK$1 each polishing
EHLEERBRAR i E&R7456,300,000 % = 100 ERESHRITE
Quzhou Hongji Diamond Limited ™ Mainland China Paid up capital Diamond trading and
of HK$6,300,000 polishing
Larchridge Limited % 2REE 10T BBk 100 - REER
Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares Investment holding
of HK$10 each
EREEREARAT Bt 78,000 kA (E 18T 2 EBR - 100 Rank/ RECERB
Wilber Corporate Services Limited Hong Kong 78,000 ordinary shares Investment holding/
of HK$1 providing corporate
services
ERRFRE (TP BRAR"  HE BAIIR7A 2,500,000%7 - 100 UNJESE S
Wilber Investments (Jiangmen) Mainland China Paid up capital Wooden products
Limited" of US$2,500,000 manufacturing
RAEERERAR Bl 600,000 AR EIE 107872 &A% 100 = RERR
Ming Xiu Diamond Cutting Hong Kong 600,000 ordinary shares Investment holding
Factory Limited of HK$10 each
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Th - KRB LR Z#Em e 19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
AL/ BHRaR/
BakEend BETRAEE RAREL
Place of Nominal value BRADL
incorporation/ of paid-up Percentage of
£ registration registered/issued equity attributable FTEER
Name and operations share capital to the Company Principal activities
Ei At
Direct Indirect
RAELM(ER)BRAR @ E 4187 11,000,000 87 - 100 ERESHRITE
Ming Xiu Diamond Cutting Mainland China Paid up capital Diamond trading and
Factory (Panyu) Limited* of HK$11,000,000 polishing
fEFKE (IF) ARAR i B 87 26,370,530 /7 - 100 K BHE
Continental Jewellery (Jiangmen)  Mainland China Paid up capital Jewellery manufacturing
Co. Ltd” of HK$26,370,530
Patford Company Limited A 100 RE{E 10078 T2 & ik = 100 MERE
Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares Property investment
of HK$100 each
Realford Company Limited B 100 RTE(E 10078702 LAk - 100 MFERE
Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares Property investment
of HK$100 each
Vieway Investments Group EBRAHE 2MREE 1 FT e ERR 100 = REER
Limited British Virgin Islands 2 ordinary shares Investment holding
of US$1 each
Yett Holdings Limited RERLEE 100/ fE 1 Z T2 SRR 100 - REER
British Virgin Islands 100 ordinary shares Investment holding
of US$1 each
Henble Limited &b 10,000 (kAR 1 B TT.2 E B 100 - mERE
Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares Property investment
of HK$1 each
SHEHRBERAR B8 100,000 RE(E 10 BT 2 &Mk - 100 EREHRITE
Anglesey Jewellery Hong Kong 100,000 ordinary shares Diamond trading and
Manufacturing Limited of HK$10 each polishing
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES continued)

M/ BRRHEM/
BRREE Y BRTRAEE RAREL
Place of Nominal value EREAL
incorporation/ of paid-up Percentage of
i registration registered/issued equity attributable FTEER
Name and operations share capital to the Company Principal activities
E# 3
Direct  Indirect
fBRNERERAR Bt 10,000 REE 17872 ERR - 100 EREHRITE
Conti Diamond Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares Diamond trading and
of HK$1 each polishing
RUGERARAA Bl 10,000,000 k& fE 1 ATz SRR = 100 EREHRITE
Man Yue Jewelry (Factory) Limited ~ Hong Kong 10,000,000 ordinary shares Diamond trading and
of HK$1 each polishing
Continental Diamond G BEIRAT 497,760 757 - 100 EREHRITE
(Jiangmen) Co. Ltd" Mainland China Paid up capital Diamond trading and
of HK$7,497,760 polishing
Master Gold Development EBRIHS 1REE ET Bk - 100 REER
Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share Investment holding
of US$1 each
Crystal Gain Development RERLES 100/ EfE 1 ET s LBk - 100 nERE
Limited British Virgin Islands 100 ordinary shares Property investment
of US$1 each
Poly Jade Development Limited &5 100 KA E 18T SRk = 60 NERE
Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares Property investment

’ WAz 2B -

* FREBHESETREE
BEFEITTZ EMBEBRKE R F
%E - IFRIEE B AT IT R EK
2 WA B A E AR
REBEEFERT 1% °

EERA - ERITARR]ZH
BRABANEEZEANFE ZEE
SERANEEEEFE 2 BAH
n o BEERAREHEMHNEAR
ZFBEREEHREBHITE

of HK$ 1 each

Wholly foreign-owned enterprise registered in the Mainland
China

Not audited by Grant Thornton Hong Kong or other Grant
Thornton International member firms. The aggregate net assets
of subsidiaries not audited by Grant Thornton amounted to
approximately 1% of the Group’s total net assets.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.
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R—BRGEHE QR 2 EH

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES continued)

Interests in a subsidiary not consolidated

REE
Group
2007 2006
FET FET
HK$000 HK$°000
BAEBAR Capital contribution 7,500 7,500
el — R B A R ZIE Due from a subsidiary 804 804
8,304 8,304
B RERE Less: Provision for impairment (8,304) (8,304)

RirE 2 MBARZFIBLAT Particulars of the non-consolidated subsidiary are as follows:
EAEMEREE KAE LG
ST R A5 1 2 Nominal value BEEALL
Place of of paid-up  Percentage of equity
28 registration registered attributable to the TEXH
Name and operations capital Company Principal activities
Ei}E3
Indirect
1855 (B ) IR E & 2R Gl EHER 56 EELd
BRAFR [EFHE]) Mainland China 10,000,000 77T In the process of liquidation
Conti Jewelry (Guangzhou) Paid up capital

Limited ("Conti Jewelry")

BERELRGEAR J‘?Itj
REBAREBBIEHHLEE -
it §$M\Z%TEG¢#ZZW%
AlZERE - BEFECHZME
AR Z ' AE 7,500,000 % 7T
K & W 2 R IE 804,000 & TTE
H2 8 - K LlFoas - B
FRELEHAKBIBKEMR
B

of HK$10,000,000

Conti Jewelry has not been consolidated because the Group
does not effectively control its operations. Accordingly,
in the opinion of the directors, it would be inappropriate
to consolidate the accounts of this subsidiary. Full
provision had been made in prior years against the capital
contribution made in this subsidiary of HK$7,500,000 and
the amount due therefrom of HK$804,000. The Group has
no exposure to Conti Jewelry other than the amounts stated
above.

O
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- REERQRZER 20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
REH RAF
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
FET FETL FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
JE_ TR « #EAKA Unlisted shares, at cost = = 9,387 9,387
EIEEEFE Share of net assets 7,927 8,353 = =
B Provision for impairment (3,898) (3,898) (9,385) (9,385)
4,029 4,455 2 2
/N o =33 Balances with associates
REE RAF
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
FET FEIT FET FEIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FEUEE 4 A T]5IE  Due from associates 2,735 4,018 8 8
SR B Provision for impairment (2,219) (1,599) = =
516 2,419 8 8
MBS A FIZIE  Due to associates (607) (672) = -

BMERT 2 EHRTVEERN - 2
BRRBMEEIAER -

BEEZEERRE <MBER

The balances with associates are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

The summarised financial information extracted from their

Bt an R management accounts are as follows:
2007 2006
FET FEIT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BEBE Total assets 34,460 14,874
AfEHERE Total liabilities (32,944) (20,596)
Wz Revenue 25,513 39,606
FER(E1E) /EF (Loss)/profit for the year (1,169) 363
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R-ZZBZLFARA=+H X2
N3y

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Particulars of the principal associates as at 30 June 2007 are
as follows:

AL/
2 Gali-v.ve BRREeny
BRTRAEE Placcof  AREEEASEEAIL
Nominal value of incorporation/  Percentage of ownership
a8 paid-up registered/ registration interest attributable TEEH
Name issued share capital and operations to the Group Principal activities
BF| (BX) BERERAF 10,000,000 EIE 17 7T B 20 RERR
Hanny (Far East) Diamond L LR Hong Kong Investment holding
Limited* 10,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each
HEENEHARAR BAHRAAR9,093,2447 t 36 REEHBE R E
General Jewellery (Shanghai) Paid up capital of Mainland China Jewellery manufacturing
Company Limited* RMB9,093,244 and wholesaling
FNAEEHHARAR! 1,000REE1 AT EER &R 50 RE B RS
Real Jewellery Limited* 1,000 ordinary shares Hong Kong Jewellery manufacturing
of HK$1 each
FDD Limited * 10,000 AEE 1T &R 25 KEEHES
ERKR Hong Kong Jewellery trading
10,000 ordinary shares

of HK$1 each

* FRBEBHEGTETHEE
BT EMBERKE AR

(22 &

EERR - ERIRARE 2
BREINEBREARFR RS
SAERANREE EFE 2 BAE
7o EERREHEMBE QT
ZHBHEERRANIIE

* Not audited by Grant Thornton Hong Kong or other Grant

Thornton International member firms.

The above table lists the associates of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the share
of associates’ results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the share of net assets of the associates by the
Group. To give details of other associates would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.
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=9 ﬁ’éi‘%ﬂ?‘:ﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁgz 21. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
&= ENTITIES
REE
Group
2007 2006
FET FAET
HK$'000 HK$°000
EhEEFE Share of net assets 3,669 1,238
BT — R EFEIEHIEES Loan to jointly controlled entities
ZER 104,970 93,300
108,639 94,538
W B E Less: Provision for impairment (11,670) -
96,969 94,538

BT H[EE G E S 2 BT ER
- ﬁa%&ﬂz Eé & E A #E T
+ @A REE o ER LR
ERNWBRE  ~AFEEE
11,670,000 (=T F ;N F ¢

The loan to jointly controlled entities are unsecured,
interest-free and not repayable within twelve months from
balance sheet date. In view of the financial performance of
a jointly controlled entity, impairment of HK$11,670,000
(2006: Nil) has been provided during the year.

) BB °
REE
Group
2007 2006
FEr FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEUg—REI R EEEZIE  Due from a jointly controlled entity 2,110 2,627
FEST T [E] 420 5| B B = Due to jointly controlled entities (39) -

E

HENEHE ﬁ%fjﬁﬁﬁ
B &B@@’fﬂﬁ—rﬂﬂﬁﬁ 2

The balances with jointly controlled entities are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.
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“t+— RHEEEHEEZ 21. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
D) ENTITIES (continued)
RZZEZELFA=+H " &R Particulars of the jointly controlled entities as at 30 June
EHERBZFBNT 2007 are as follows:
ML/ B
&g
Placeof  AKEBREMEFERANMN
BETRAEE incorporation/  Percentage of ownership
4 Nominal value of registration interest attributable FEER
Name issued share capital and operations to the Group Principal activities
Wealth Plus Developments 50000 REE 1R ERE — RBEXES 50 REER
Limited 50,000 ordinary shares British Virgin Islands Investment holding
of US$1 each
Georland (HK) Limited 1,000,000 K E{E 1 T i 50 TR kA 32
LBk Hong Kong Service provider and agent
1,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each
Big Edge International Limited 100k EE 1 T2 EBR RERLES 30 ®E
100 ordinary shares British Virgin Islands Investment

of US$1 each

B AREBGEMBRER 2 A
SEE(EEEIEGIE R 2 B85

The aggregate amounts relating to the jointly controlled
entities attributable to the Group that have been included in

N the Group’s consolidated financial statements are as follows:
2007 2006
FEx FET
HK$'000 HK$°000
IEmENEE Non-current assets 91,745 92,078
mEEE Current assets 7,614 5,415
99,359 97,493
ERBAaE Non-current liabilities (93,300) (93,300)
mEaE Current liabilities (2,390) (2,955)
(95,690) (96,255)
BEFE Net assets 3,669 1,238
WA Income 5,435 5,143
sz Expenses (3.121) (4,717)
1
BrET1S 18 m Profit after income tax 2,314 426 2
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—+=- %#tﬂﬁzﬁﬁﬂiﬁ 22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

ASSETS
REE
Group
2007 2006
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR E - AN Listed equity investments, at fair value:
BB Hong Kong 8,077 7,661
H i3 Elsewhere 2,334 422
10,411 8,083
JE ETRRAIRE - K ZAN *  Unlisted equity investments, at cost* 11,339 11,339
AR Provision for impairment (3,243) (3,097)
8,096 8,242
it Total 18,507 16,325
HEZTE Market value of listed investments 10,411 8,083
& ZEIE EHIRAREZE TR A G The unlisted equity investments are stated at cost less provision

B ER B - ARAZER
BEYENEREMSRE - EF
RE REFLTEAREZ
FREERCIEAFE -

for impairment as they do not have a quoted market price in an
active market. The directors are of the opinion that the carrying
amounts of the unlisted equity investments approximate their
fair value.
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“+= - REAEWFIE 23. LONG TERM RECEIVABLES

REE RAF

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
Notes  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Hrzt FET FET FET FET
EEERE Promissory notes (a) 15,366 19,009 8,619 9,577
H it R E0A Other long term receivables (b) 23,533 25,195 = =
38,899 44,204 8,619 9,577
wERE Provision for impairment (26,532) (28,194) (1,000) (1,000)
12,367 16,010 7,619 8,577
SEBARBEELD Portion classified as current assets (3,643) (3,643) (958) (958)
8,724 12,367 6,661 7,619

RZEELFANA=1+
BZALEBESEA
15,366 ooo,%rd_?;r\
£ : 19,009,000 7T)
4311,745,0005%73(:%
T X4 ¢ 13,050,000587T)
BERE B REHRC
T —F+ A —HRB
>+ RFEHE H&H
3,621,000 (ZEFR
£ :5,959,000 /87T ) AER
e 2ERBER-_TT=
FE=At+HB®EST=4F
HiE o FRE R UE) &
HEBRZFEER -

REEBR AR T HET
& “72—153 167,000
e JT(= =z N F:

3,16 7000/%%-5 T Z B’ R
B ZBEHBARE -
RN - HEN
A=+HEE NUKk—E
20,366,000 7T ( —ZZEE /<
4 :22,028,00087L) 2 &
SN IERRRE - %A
BT B.6% - B AR
—ERAFE=A=1+—8
8% -

o

Out of the promissory notes of HK$15,366,000
as at 30 June 2007 (2006: HK$19,009,000),
HK$11,745,000 (2006: HK$13,050,000) is secured,
interest-free and repayable by 15 annual instalments
commencing on 1 October 2001. The remaining
balance of HK$3,621,000 (2006: HK$5,959,000) is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable by 13 annual
instalments commencing on 15 March 2003. The
annual instalments on the promissory notes were duly
received during the year.

The balance represents a shareholder’s loan of
HK$3,167,000 (2006: HK$3,167,000) advanced to
an investee company which is interest-free, unsecured
and repayable on 30 June 2015 and a trade receivable
balance of HK$20,366,000 (2006: HK$22,028,000),
which is interest bearing at 6% per annum, unsecured
and repayable on 31 March 2009.

Ul
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4+ FE 24. INVENTORIES
FEH
Group
2007 2006
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Rt Raw materials 184,826 172,144
FBIRK o Work in progress 11,265 17,386
SR o Finished goods 151,260 145,517
347,351 335,047
— o
—+1x - ESEEEE 25. TRADE RECEIVABLES
rEE
Group
2007 2006
FET FETL
HK$'000 HK$°000
Z 5 EWFIE Trade receivables 211,337 196,894
B PEUE B R A R Less: provision for impairment of receivables (18,077) (23,165)
B SR IE — %5 Trade receivables — net 193,260 173,729
REBE—MRIRBITEEFARER The Group normally apply credit terms to its customers
BFEZEE  BRTHERLEF according to industry practice together with consideration
HEREIIEPZEERK - 8% of their creditability, repayment history and years of
BEFHOERSEER - AEER establishment. Each customer has a maximum credit
IS EL R (E R B GRIR A R BRAS limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
2zl o mARIER R EEEE outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are regularly
HRETTERED o reviewed by senior management.
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“+h - ESEWURIEE 25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
REER - RIHEERBEE 2 An aged analysis of trade receivables, net of provision, as at
BRI ME1R B 5 EWGRIE 2 BRIk 5 the balance sheet date, based on the date of recognition of
T the sale, is as follows:

r5E

Group
2007 2006
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
BIER Current 100,329 75,843
31—60H 31 - 60 days 27,013 23,979
61—90H 61 —90 days 33,025 22,574
91 B E Over 91 days 32,893 51,333
193,260 173,729

AR AEEAZHEF 7 ARt
REM - LB ZRIGIRMS -
WEESPEERR

BHRUHKEEBRETIIAGH
ERZIEEEB AN EHEHE

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
receivables, as the Group has a large number of customers
which are internationally dispersed.

Included in trade receivables are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional

ZEE currency of the entity to which they relate:
2007 2006
ETT U.S. Dollars USD21,558,000 USD18,686,000
EYH ETT
e British Pounds GBP1,522,000 GBP1,928,000
¥ e

~
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o

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

REE
Group
2007 2006
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB LETRAES Listed equity securities in Hong Kong,
EhiE at market value 15,958 11,667
Hipih@ A EENES Marketable unit funds elsewhere,
/N X = at fair value 6,555 5,961
22,513 17,628

ARFEFABEZ EREER
RERERNELE RN
2INRLEECEBIHD

AR HEFABGZEREER
FEEH T ARSERAZEMBL
EHs (A »

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are
presented within the section on operating activities as part
of changes in working capital in the cash flow statement.

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in other operating expense/
(income) in the income statement.
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"+t BRERRITER 27. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Re MIRITHESRBIRAT D

Cash and bank balances include the following components:

REH RAF
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET

Ra MRTTHES
75 BT HR T K

Cash and bank balances
Short term time deposits

66,858 63,297 85 86
35,423 53,111 - -

102,281 116,408 85 86

RITIR SRR T A 17 50 F = BREX
ZERE o FHHE BRI IR IR
RS EREBRITERFEES
1.95% & 5.196%( =T /N4 ¢
0.75% E 4.175%) BRELFI & - I
HERtRE—E@ATE A
RPN EN 18 —HEAfR A 2 1
A F B A RIEE T RIESEUH ©

Be MRTTEREIERIETIIIA
ERERZNEEBENIIZEE
FHEZ28 -

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are placed
with the banks and earn interest at the respective short
term bank deposit rates ranging from 1.95% to 5.196%
(2006: 0.75% to 4.175%) per annum. They have a maturity
ranging from 7 days to 1 month and are eligible for
immediate cancellation without receiving any interest for
the last deposit period.

Included in cash and bank balances are mainly the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate:

2007 2006

£ U.S. Dollars USD10,300,000 USD4,880,000
EDv ETT

gE British Pounds GBP514,000 GBP461,000
HEE g

BT Euro EURS,000 EUR34,000
BT BT

ARHE ([ AR ) Renminbi (“RMB") RMB5,478,000 RMB7,788,000
TTARHE TARE

AEBBRS RRTEHRB2ER
FEZEBTERAAREE
25,282,000 87T (=TT F ¢
7,579,000 7T ) RI1T &R o A
REAT B B EIR o RIFREIIN
& FHEN RAAE - SENE
BIEBTE - ASETRBERE
FBINE 75 2 SRITHEITIMNES
7}’% o

Included in cash and bank balances of the Group is
HK$5,282,000 (2006: HK$7,579,000) of bank balances
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") placed with banks in the
Mainland China. RMB is not a freely convertible currency.
Under the Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement and Sales
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through
banks that are authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

O
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(=)

—+N\ - BHEMRIE 28. TRADE PAYABLES
REER - B EMNRIE ZRE An aged analysis of the trade payables at the balance sheet
DITET : date is as follows:

F&EE

Group
2007 2006
FAET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
ENEA Current 157,806 126,712
31—60H 31 - 60 days 39,103 31,868
61—90H 61 —90 days 7,544 31,147
91 HEA E Over 91 days 6,578 25,680
211,031 215,407

p=va)
H
=
i=N

SRENFIAC B TIIAREH
B2 IN E¥EHE

Included in trade payables are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional

ZBFE currency of the entity to which they relate:
2007 2006
=TT U.S. Dollars USD26,230,000 USD26,561,000
EY =TT
g British Pounds GBP130,000 GBP77,000
—thTEEMIA 29. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS
rEE Group
2007 2006
BE = BE =l
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Hrzt TET FET FET FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ENER Current
EHEHAH Forward currency contracts (@) = = - 312
FlSEHAY Interest rate swap contracts (b) 39 = 561 =
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29. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

“tAhtTEEMIAEE)

Mzt Notes:

@ BEHEEAOURSETELR (@)  The forward currency contracts were denominated in Pound
BE_TTLFARA=1THL Sterling and matured during the year ended 30 June 2007.
FENFIE -

b) MWZFETLERNA=THE 'K (b)  The notional principal amounts of the outstanding interest rate

RETZMBEHAEQMEEFR swap contracts at 30 June 2007 were HK$50,000,000 (2006:
& #8584 50,000,0008 7T (== HK$150,000,000). As at 30 June 2007, the fixed interest rates
T 754 ¢ 150,000,000787T) © 1 of these contracts were 3.98% (2006: 3.91% to 3.98%) per
:;ﬁ%‘tfﬁ/_\ﬂz+a ! EZ% annum.

ERZEEFHNER3.98% (=

TERF :3.91% £3.98%) °

=+ EFEREANLTFE 30. DUE TO A RELATED PARTY

rEE
Group
2007 2006
FET TrE7T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BN —EHRES Amount due to a company wholly
BB 2 AR ZKIE owned by a director 148,742 =

SRR REABER - 25 RE
RIBAB IR - ZSHIHERN
Wil — R B 2 A 2 O BB
T -

=t+— PEREEXK 31.

The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand. The amount was resulted from the acquisition
of minority interests in a subsidiary during the year.

LOANS FROM MINORITY
SHAREHOLDERS

For the year ended 30 June 2007, the loans are unsecured,
interest-free and not repayable within the next twelve
months from the balance sheet date. For the year ended
30 June 2006, the loans are unsecured, interest-free,
and repayable on demand except for an amount of

BE-TTLEAASTALS
B RERARER 28R
BANEE R AR+ =8
AREE - BE-TEAER
AZ+ALFE B—HELHE

\

£31,125,000/870.2 IR AR
BEHEMARTZEARNEER
s BEEFGHEER - 28
RARBMEERER -

DERFEEH 2 REERERA
e -

HK$1,125,000 which was not repayable within the next
twelve months from the balance sheet date.

The carrying amounts of loans from minority shareholders
approximate their fair value.
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=+ RITERRER 32.
Bk

BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS,

H SECURED
REH
Group
2007 2006
FET FAET
HK$’'000 HK$°000
RITIBEX - HEIE Bank overdrafts, secured 113 =
RITER - Ak Bank loans, secured:
BR—FRNEER Repayable within one year 8,169 24,566
BRE_FEER Repayable in the second year 43,169 19,758
BERE=FEFRTF Repayable in the third to
ER(BIEEEMF) fifth years, inclusive 9,188 59,274
HARAFREER Repayable beyond five years 298,140 169,085
358,666 272,683
358,779 272,683
B BHAREBBER—  Less: Current portion due
FAEHZ BEREL within one year included
under current liabilities (8,282) (24,566)
EIAFERBBE I Non current portion included
BNHAER 2 under non-current liabilities 350,497 248,117

REBUABTAHEZRITER R
BE 2 REENEEL48%F
541%(ZZ2ZRF 1 491% =
7.63%) - ARBERITERZE
FEERNZEAE6.30%FE7.34%(=F
TNE  6.51% £ 6.70%) °

The bank loans and overdrafts of the Group denominated
in HK$ have floating interest rate ranging from 4.48% to
5.41% per annum (2006: 4.91% to 7.63% per annum).
The RMB bank loans have fixed interest rate ranging from
6.30% to 7.34% per annum (2006: 6.51% to 6.70% per

annum).
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=+ RITERRER 32. BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS,
Bk SECURED (continued)
RZZEZLFARA=TH && At 30 June 2007, the Group’s banking facilities were
Bl ZRITERBRUATER:E supported by the following:
(@) —BEEREWEHSKRAZ (@) assignment of rental income of certain investment
[ properties;
by AEBEIREYZHE  FTH (b) legal charges over the Group’s investment properties
& T R 2 A E A and certain leasehold land and buildings; and
53
(c) AREMERZRARER: ()  corporate guarantees executed by the Company.
&
B TR AREEZERERE Details of the loans denominated in HK$ and RMB are stated
m below:
2007 2006
FiET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
LUBTTRTEZ B Loans denominated in HK$
—iRITES — Bank overdrafts 113 =
—RITER - Bank loans 352,000 267,875
NARESHEZER Loans denominated in RMB
—IRITER - Bank loans 6,666 4,808
358,779 272,683
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=+= - iEEFHIE 33. DEFERRED TAX

UTRREERBRERZER
BERERAEERAE - UERA

The following are major deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised in the balance sheet and the movements during

FERBAFE &) : the current and prior years:
REE Group
ESEN
AR
MEHERE  EffWE  Provision
Accelerated tax Revaluation  for trade Hit st
depreciation of properties receivables Others Total
FAT FET FET FET FET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
RIZZRFELA-AZEHR Balance at 1 July 2005 1,639 24,460 (17.811) - 8,288
REFhEE Charge/(Credit) to income
e/ GGIA) statement for the year 874 2,228 (2,000) (278) 824
HE—HHB AR Disposal of a subsidiary (586) (8,206) - 218 (8,514)
RITZRFAA=THZEH  Balance at 30 June 2006 1927 18,482 (19,811) - 598
N Charge to income statement
il for the year 800 42,000 1,253 - 44,053
RZBBLEAB=TH2E  Balance at 30 June 2007 2,721 60,482 (18,558) = 44,651

EXEHBEERABRAIERTT
BMREERBRITHRBAREBESA
RN B AR SH S B PSR
— ISR T - TR B AR

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
relate to the same fiscal authority.
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=+= - iBEHRIE =)

33.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

T eBMEFTABERHRBE The following amounts, determined after appropriate
E VR EEABRAT offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet:
BE :
REE
Group
2007 2006
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
BLEBIAAE Deferred tax liabilities 63,209 20,409
RETTBE 2= Deferred tax assets (18,558) (19,811)
44,651 598

ANEBAERIEH68,041,000
BIL(ZZZ /N 1 56,172,000
BIT) © ZETIB A8 5| B
LB 2 DRIARKRERT R
ERZERBARIEBT A6
RIS AR R ERBSF - E e
RAZETIBERBELCHIEA
E o AEAHIE 26,431,000/ 7T
(ZZZ/<4% : 15,608,000/87T)
BR-ZE——Fa1 (BIEZF) 2
R B HREIER - HAb KRBT IE
EEIEFE A o

R=BBLEAA=TR &2
AU ARAE A B AR B REEBUR
BE(ZTTAT ) -

The Group has tax losses of approximately HK$68,041,000
(2006: HK$56,172,000) that are available for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies which
incurred the losses. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as it is not probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which
these unused tax losses can be utilised. Unused tax losses
of HK$26,431,000 (2006: HK$15,608,000) will expire at
various dates up to and including 2011. Other unused tax
losses have no expiry date.

As at 30 June 2007, the Company did not have any
significant unprovided deferred tax liabilities (2006: Nil).

=M > BgA 34. SHARE CAPITAL
2007 2006
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EERA Authorised:
FREE0I10BTL 3,500,000,000 ordinary shares
L3/R% 3,500,000,000 A% of HK$0.10 each 350,000 350,000
BETRERRA : Issued and fully paid:
FREE010BTL 279,800,031 ordinary shares
iM% 279,800,031 Ak of HK$0.10 each 27,980 27,980

Ul
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=+I - #E 35. RESERVES

REE

AEE R FE AR ERER
ANED 2 2 BERAENED
%27 -

HiEE AR B A E 2 8o
Rz s 5 2 B RN URE D 8L
BREREARNGRAEEABR
PR B R B c BER
BECER -

RN F]

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Other reserve represents the difference between the
consideration paid for the additional interest in the
subsidiaries and the minority interest’s share of the assets
and liabilities reflected in the consolidated balance sheet at
the dates of the acquisition of the minority interests.

Company

REER FU2KHE

Share Non- REBEH
premium distributable Retained @t
account reserve profits Total

FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZZETRFELA—B2&EH Balance at 1 July 2005 158,373 273,606 77,426 509,405
NEELF Net profit for the year - - 69,398 69,398
“EEFEARERE Interim 2006 dividend - - (2,798) (2,798)
“EENEERRAARE Proposed final 2006 dividend = = (8,394) (8,394)
RZZEE FAAZTHR Balance at 30 June 2006

i S s Rl = and at 1 July 2006 158,373 273,606 135,632 567,611
REFHF| Net profit for the year - - 21,399 21,399
“EZLEEHHRE Interim 2007 dividend - - (2,798) (2,798)
TS EERIRAARE Proposed final 2007 dividend - - (5,596) (5,596)
RZZEZ2LEAA=+TH2z%EE  Balance at 30 June 2007 158,373 273,606 148,637 580,616

PRI D IRFEEIER — NN ER
REIZEBREERSRK2.5078
TLHIR ZE0.1078 TT P EE & 2 &

The non-distributable reserve represents the premium
arising on the reduction of the par value of ordinary shares
of the Company from HK$2.50 to HK$0.10 per share in
1994.
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=+ BAER 36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
RARFIRITTERMEN B A A The Company has executed guarantees amounting to
{EH 621,000,000 0 (= ZEE /N HK$621 million (2006: HK$348 million) with respect to
£F : 348,000,000787C) ZHER © bank loans to its subsidiaries. Under the guarantees, the
BIEER - WRITREEWEIZE Company would be liable to pay the banks if the banks are
B RRR/ZEAEMRRITER unable to recover the loans. At the balance sheet date, no
ZEJ% REEH @ ARESR provision for the Company’s obligation under the guarantee
BIEREREEEZEERZ contract has been made as the directors considered that it
B0 - E WAL E R ER was not probable that the repayment of the loans would be
BHET 2 BEEELR#E - in default.
=+t EFRKIE 37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
AZEELFA=TH - K% At 30 June 2007, the Group had outstanding capital
ﬁTﬁHﬂif’fﬁZéﬁZ}K%@% : commitments as follows:
AEE
Group
2007 2006
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
EEFOER ST Contracted but not provided for
T —EHERZESIEE shareholders’ loan to a jointly
ZRERER controlled entity 29,200 24,500
R-ZZEZLFRA=1H Z]KZ\\ At 30 June 2007, the Company did not have any capital
AN EE R EARNEE(ZTT N commitments (2006: Nil).
F )
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=+ BERERH
(@) fEBHAEA

AEEAEEHELHME

HEETE GRET)

ARENBREMEES
% o

R-FTLEAA=T
B+ 7K S B B B4
BRE 2 KRN
T 5 1548 48 S B R SRR A

38. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

As lessor

The Group leases certain of its properties (note 18)
under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from two to five years.

At 30 June 2007, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

T

REE

Group
2007 2006
FET FEIT
HK$’'000 HK$°000
—F R Within one year 20,062 25,832

F_FEERF In the second to fifth years,

(BEEEMF) inclusive 6,608 16,396
26,670 42,228
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=+ - RERERH @) 38. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(continued)
(b) f1ERAMEA (b) As lessee
REFE AL L E LB The Group leases certain of its office properties and
)\%:F#J#“*%%&E\I staff quarters under operating lease arrangements.
BE  AMMELNERA— Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging
GEzE= iT\f—? o from one to three years.
RZZEZELFNA=T At 30 June 2007, the Group had total future minimum
B - ANEE A HEEEE lease payments under non-cancellable operating
EHE 2 RRENHEER leases falling due as follows:
X 4258 N A8 A AR 1A
T
rEE
Group
2007 2006
TFET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
— &R Within one year 4,202 4,208
“FEEFERF In the second to fifth years,
(BEEEMT) inclusive 3,846 5,595
8,048 9,803
R-ZBZT+ESNA=1+H  &AQ At 30 June 2007, the Company did not have any significant
AT (A B AKLTE % operating lease arrangements (2006: Nil).

BH(ZTTRE &)
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Et+hA - HE—FEHEBAR 39. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY
HEZTZT+HFA=THILSF There is no disposal of a subsidiary during the year ended 30
B WELENB AR - June 2007.

HE—_FEZENA=+THILE During the year ended 30 June 2006, the Group disposed
B AREBHEEZEWB AT a wholly-owned subsidiary, City Treasure Limited (”City
WEARAT (W) o HEH Treasure”). The consideration for the disposal of share
ERA(THEE D) 2REBIIORA capital of City Treasure (the “Disposal”) was arrived at
158,000,000 78 7T A 18 F& 15 < (i) after deducting the amount due to the Company of
A7l 2 & B #43,583,0007% JT approximately HK$43,583,000, which was assigned
(BAATEZEETE ) ML by the Company to the purchaser and amount owed
/R ER1T 2 FIE 58,333,000 T2 by City Treasure to the bank of HK$58,333,000 from
% RNVIRBESREHZETE HK$158,000,000; and (ii) after adjusting for a net amount
EEMEAE AECGELER of all other assets/liabilities except for deferred tax liabilities
IHEGERIN) 2 FEEIEL A% as agreed by the vendor and purchaser.
2006
TrET
HK$'000
HEEE (&) : Assets/(liabilities) disposed of:
MERE Investment property 152,000
e R H AL EUIE Deposit and other receivables 406
RITIH® Cash at bank 84
EAthfETBRIK Other payables (229)
BET& Deposit received (1,577)
JES S AR A B FRIE Amount due to ultimate holding company (101,916)
T TH B Provision for tax (13)
EEFIAAE Deferred tax liabilities (8,514)
BEFE Net assets 40,241
& B S 4R % A BIFUE Disposal of an amount due to ultimate holding company 43,583
EEEHERBETEZ Repayment of bank loan in connection
iz with the disposal (Note) 58,333
N2 B A S HA Cost incurred by the Group
EAEZ AR during disposal 1,272
& —RME A mEs Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 13,036
156,465
TRARER : Consideration satisfied by:
Re Cash 156,465

Brat - SRITEFN TR B B 77 W E)

Note: The bank loan was settled upon the receipt of part of the

consideration from the purchaser upon completion.
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E+j'[, © |':|:'| ‘% —Faﬂ M’J'E/L}EJ 39. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)
(%)
HE—FRBARMEERE The analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
R EE 2 RASFES T in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows:
™
2006
T&T
HK$°000
BUIRESRE Cash consideration received 156,465
HERITRE Cash at bank disposal of (84)
REBRNHEHRHE Costs incurred by the Group
BEEZKA during disposal (1,272)
A & — kT E A Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
MELBRS MRS EFRE in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary
ZMAEFE 155,109
M+ 2555 6t 40 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
R-EBEEXENA+RAB A& On 15 September 2006, the Group acquired 60% of
BUWEERERARAA(E the equity interest of Poly Jade Development Limited
2| 260%EE ER T I (“Poly Jade”). The principal activity of Poly Jade is
WERAYELE - R-_FE X property investment. Poly Jade contributed revenue of
ENA+EBE-_EE 4N HK$1,965,000 and net loss of HK$23,120,000 to the Group
A=+ BHHE E2s5AKEE for the period from 15 September 2006 to 30 June 2007.
% 351 965,0009% 7T 2 W 25 & Poly Jade was a dormant company prior to the completion
23,120,000 7 FE518 o AUk of acquisition and accordingly, if the acquisition had
AT %ggﬁﬁﬂﬁzf\— occurred on 1 July 2006, there is no other financial impact
Ak EEER -_ZENF on the Group’s revenue and profit for the year.
+tA—HET Y TEHAEE
F 2 s Kom M E BRI 1572
Z o
W B > O] 25 B8 B A R N g = Details of net identifiable assets acquired and goodwill
BEAZHEZHEBENT arising on acquisition were as follows:
TET
HK$'000
BENREBEFE-COESE  Total purchase consideration — cash paid 7,920
BEREER Purchase of shareholder’s loan (7,920)

B kS 2 Al BIE E)FE 2. Fair value of net identifiable assets

~HE acquired
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HE_ZTLFRA=THIEFE

~~

M+~ XFEHF @
Wi EEE e 2 A E R A

40.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition are as

T follows:
WU 2
IREE
Acquiree’s
ANEE carrying
Fair value amount
TFET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Deposit 13,200 13,200
IRERE K Loan from a shareholder (13,200) (13,200)
BB 2 Al RIEERE  Net identifiable assets acquired - -
IR EHE  BERE Purchase consideration settled in cash 7,920

WHBERES 2

WemLFE Net cash outflow arising on acquisition of Poly Jade 7,920

BE_TTRFAA=THLF

& WEEAKREER -

m+—REALR S

41.

FRAFHRELMEIREZ

EALRZIN
BMIEEALRS -

ALRERFA

(@) X 148,257,000/ T =

T RF

10,507,000/

TL)DBRERTETHER
A DBERKASER

BYE R RIRLERE

(b) £IE W ff Hw .% ﬁé!

1,337,000/ (=&
%:1,991,00077T) © f
AAEEEBEE N T

T
=<
FS

Bt

28w

There was no acquisition during the year ended 30 June
2006.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those related party transactions disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, during the year, the
Group had the following related party transactions.

(@) Subcontracting fees of HK$8,257,000 (2006:
HK$10,507,000) paid to certain associates. The
subcontracting fees are mutually negotiated between
the Group and the associates.

(b)  Sales of goods to associates of HK$ 1,337,000 (2006:
HK$1,991,000) were made during the year. The terms
are mutually negotiated between the Group and the
associates.
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m+— -FREALR S @)

(0

B — MR R E 8
SBUA 20,0008 T (=E
Z N4 1 140,000 7T) &
TR TS U A 204,000/ 7T
(ZZTZT /X4 : 299,000
TL) ° D BUWA KRBT
PR 75 U A FR 7S S5 [ £ 2 7]
B BB IR I B o

R_ZZELFRA+—
H - —REWE 2 Invest
Companion Limited &
— AR EBEXHS
+F A 32 30 FR PR BE R Ot
ES((REEDEZ2ERE
2 B R 2 A]Brilliant Top
Properities Limited 5] 32 &
= ths5  ULBE Crystal Gain
Developments Limited
(TCrystal Gainl) 45 % &A% 1.00
% 7t Z B 19+ 15 Crystal
GainBEITIRANZ45%
RBAEFEL /5,400,000 %
5T o

41.

RE

LATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(0)

Subcontracting income of HK$20,000 (2006:
HK$140,000) and income for administrative services
of HK$204,000 (2006: HK$299,000) were received
from a jointly controlled entity. The subcontracting
income and income for administrative services
provided are mutually negotiated between the Group
and the jointly-controlled entity.

On 11 May 2007, Invest Companion Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary, entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with Brilliant Top Properties
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability and wholly-owned by Mr.
Chan Sing Chuk, Charles (“Mr. Chan") to acquire 45
shares of US$1.00 each in Crystal Gain Developments
Limited (“Crystal Gain”), representing 45% of issued
share capital of Crystal Gain at the total consideration
of approximately HK$5,400,000.

w
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mM+— -FAEATX G @ 41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

() & AW BRI A& M Crystal (e) During the year, Mr. Chan provided a personal

GainZ |RITRIEMH — 18 guarantee to the banker of Crystal Gain up to
BEAER SSBSEE the total amount of HK$120,544,000 (2006:
120,544,000 o ( = =& HK$153,675,000) being 45% of a bank loan of
= /X 4 : 153,675,000 HK$267,875,000 (2006: HK$341,500,000) drawn by
Jt) * Bl Crystal Gain &% Crystal Gain. The personal guarantee was released
267,875,000 (=2 F when the bank loan was wholly repaid on 29 June
7N 4F + 341,500,000 % 7T ) 2007.
RITERZ45%  R=F
ZHENAZTALEBH
BEZZRITERIE - Z
EABRE T 8RR o

FTEEBASEF Compensation of key management personnel

HAEEENAZCEZEEA Included in employee benefit expenses are key management

BRFeET5ER personnel compensation and comprises the following

categories:
2007 2006
FET TFET
HK$’000 HK$'000
HHEBRA Short term employee benefits 9,007 7,824
BEER 12 13 T Post-employment benefits 249 218
9,256 8,042
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L E =31 PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
RZZEZ+FA=1+H as at 30 June 2007
REWE Investment properties
AEBEELERE
Attributable
NE B& FHH interest
Location Use Lease term of the Group
JUBBALHY I% T 100%
R¥HE37-455% Industrial Medium
SELIERLE—H
12BAZE
Unit A, 12 Floor
Kaiser Estate Phase 1
No.37-45 Man Yue Street
Hung Hom
Kowloon
EBSEFFE 523 E 527 5% [SES H A 100%
BMEAKERE Commercial Medium
The Whole Block of
Continental Diamond Plaza
No. 523 to 527 Hennessy Road
Hong Kong
EBNEEEETNos. 2 416 [EES T HA 60%
Nos. 2, 4 and 6 Bowring Street, Commercial Medium

Kowloon, Hong Kong



Other Financial Information m E 481 7&& %

hFEMBRE

AT HAEEBER AP RFEEE R
BE AEEJBERESZRE &
FAAEE TR . RERYBRE WL
BREHABIH - —TT=FE_F
TREZHBECARNBBRBGEL
SRM I BAMBREEAME
5l o ZRBEY TERKEZIM RS 2

—H5 -

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and minority
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the respective published audited financial statements and
reclassified as appropriate, is set out as below. The figures for the
year ended 2003 to 2005 have been restated as a result of adoption
of new Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. This summary does
not form part of the audited financial statements.

e RESULTS
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
(&%) (E71) (&%)
(as restated) (as restated) (as restated)
Wogs Revenue 1,632,180 1,711,670 1,243,110 1,249,087 1,219,144
RS A0&E R Profit before income tax 259,794 71,379 106,137 19,976 15,706
SRR Income tax expense (52,898) (16,324) (21,951) (5,957) (4,246)
KT DBIREAERSAHF  Profit before minority interest 206,896 55,055 84,186 14,019 11,460
SRR R Minority interests (92,910) (4,518) (34,119) 1,418 (1,089)
ADAEREFEA Net profit attributable
FEAE AR to equity holders of
the Company 113,986 50,537 50,067 15,437 10,371

EE - aRRVEREEDR

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND MINORITY
INTERESTS

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
FiET FET FET FET FET

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

(E5) (271)) (E5)

(as restated) (as restated) (as restated)

BELE Total assets 1,683,031 1,365,781 1,385,891 953,501 810,465
BfEEE Total liabilities (882,841) (620,872) (691,809) (333,486) (242,379)
DERRES Minority interests (1,208) (42,828) (38,310) 4,191) (5,609)
798,982 702,081 655,772 615,824 562,477
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